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SOUTH AMERICAN GOLD AND COPPER COMPANY LIMITED

Report to Shareholders — 2008

The Company’s activities for its fiscal year endggptember 30, 2008, and to the date of this regrert
summarized below.

Introduction

This report provides our shareholders with a summéthe Company’s activities at this time. Formmo
detailed information, see the Company’s Annual timfation Form dated December 18, 2008, on SEDAR,
www.sedar.conand the Company’s websitgww.sagc.com

The Company further strengthened its Board of Dinscwith the addition of John Selters, P.E., and
Richard J. Lachcik as Directors of the Company twedelection of Peter W. Hogg to the position ofeth
Financial Officer.

As previously reported, the Company closed a peivatacement with Global Advisors Management
Limited in the amount of $4,000,000 in December20The proceeds of this financing were substdptial
used for the restart of operations at its Pimegd mine.

The Company

The Company’s primary focus this past year has hleaestart operations at its 100% owned Pimenton
mine at 50 tons per day and increasing produ¢t00 tons per day by August 2009. The Compars/ wa
successful in bringing the mine into commercialduetion effective October 1, 2008, at 91.43 torsdasy

or a total of 1,920 tons during the 21 days thentplaas in operation. The head grade into the plant
averaged 15.43 grams of gold per ton, silver a\estdgt.38 grams per ton and copper averaged 1.17% pe
ton. The recovery rate for gold was 94.4%; foresilwas 77.6% and 88% for copper. The remaining te
days of the month work was in progress to make avgments to the mill circuit.

In the month of November 2008, the plant proce$defl6 tons per day or a total of 2,483 tons dyii®
27 days of operation. The head grade into the @sataged 14.53 grams of gold per ton, silver ayesta
16.95 grams per ton and copper averaged 1.30%opeiThe recovery rate for gold was 90.9%; foresilv
was 67.3% and 84.6% for copper.

The Company is also engaged in the exploration tberomineral properties. Its exploration and
development interests are concentrated in Chile.

The Company currently has interests, through itssisliary companies in five principal properties,
Pimenton (100%), Tordillo (100%), Bandurrias (100&f)d La Bella (100%). The Company also holds
interests in two limestone projects Catedral/RiBb.10%) and Cal Norte (60%). All of its projectear

located in Chile.

Pimenton

Pimenton is located at elevations ranging from @@04,000 meters within the San Esteban Comutfzein
Los Andes Province of Chile’s fifth region, appnmétely 175 km by road north of Santiago, and

127663.v2B 1



approximately 195 km by road from the Enami sme#teVentanas. Enami purchases and processes
gold/copper concentrate from many of the minestixtan central Chile, including Pimenton.

Pimenton’s mineral rights are secured by a blockarftinuous and protective mining claims covering a
area of approximately 3,121 hectares (7,708 agvidg)n a rectangular figure of 6 km north-south%im
east-west.

The long-range tailings disposal plan for the Pitaergold mine is to construct a rock fill dam actise
Quebrada at a point 100 meters downstream from ctireent tailings ponds. The dam will be
approximately 200 meters long and approximatelyriéders high in the center. This embankment can be
constructed in stages over a two to four year peaitd will hold an estimated 1,100,000 tons ofrtgd.

Design and permitting of this tailings deposit vagproved by SERNAGEOMIN, the Chilean government
mining agency, on December 17, 2004.

Pimenton — Geology

The mine site is located on Chile’s famous copmppyry belt along with CODELCO'’s El Teniente and
Andina mines and Anglo American PLC’s Los Broncesiemnto the south, and Antofagasta PLC’s
Pelambres mine to the north.

The Pimenton alteration zone can be geologicallywshto correspond to the upper part of a typical
porphyry copper system. A widespread system efdtdge persistent steep, narrow northeasterlgitrgn
gold veins has been superimposed on the uppeofptm porphyry system at Pimenton.

The geomorphology of the property is characterizgé northwest trending ridge, peaking at an elemat
of approximately 4,000 meters, that separates itherRon valley and the upper Rio Colorado River.

Near the center of the alteration zone, primaniyttee northeastern side of the Pimenton valleyetesred

to above, there are surface gold anomalies whiclda@present additional north-northeast trendieims.
These anomalies are typically about 150 meterst.apene current mineral reserves are blocked on two
veins in the Lucho/Leyton area which are north&astding, steeply dipping quartz-sulfide veins vishiit

in a pattern of some 17 such vein systems infdogesurface geophysics and geochemical surveys.

The veins are typically near vertical, with ore-stsoup to 200 meters in length with a mining widfh70
to 80 centimeters. Systems such as these typitally good vertical continuity.

In addition to these high-grade gold veins, theeelewer grade north northwest trending veinsappears
that there were multiple mineralizing events withistructurally complex setting extending over r@¢hby
three kilometer area indicating a significant resepotential on which further exploration is nesgde

Pimenton — Current Status

To restart operations at its Pimenton gold mine,@ompany focused its efforts on: 1) repair of dges
to the entire roof of the Pimenton plant; 2) prepian of the mine for initial production. 3) redtar
exploration and development of Esperanza adit, lwlias completed in July 2008, including driving of
crosscuts and raises to increase proven and pebedtrves; and 4) start production and prepaneote
Pimenton from 50 tons per day to increasing ratggaduction. The Pimenton mine was declared tinbe
commercial production effective October 1, 2008.

The operation will primarily utilize the cash flot® increase proven and probable reserves in lilke wi
increasing production.

Current plans are to keep the Pimenton mine inatjoer for 12 months per year.
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Pimenton Porphyry Copper Project

The Company signed a Letter of Understanding (L®lith Angle American Norte, S.A. (“Anglo”).,
formerly Empresa de Mantos Blancos S.A., a whollyred subsidiary of Anglo American plc, in March

2007 on its Porphyry system at Pimenton, its whollned subsidiary. Under the terms of the LOU,
Mantos drilled 2,000 meters of diamond drill holesfore deciding to enter a formal Joint Venture
Agreement with the Company. Anglo notified the Qamy of its intention to enter into a Joint Venture
Agreement and work was proceeding on the Agreemvben Anglo, on October 30, 2008, informed the
Company of its intention to withdraw from furtheork on the Joint Venture Agreement and the LOU on
the project was terminated due to the uncertamtyarld commodity prices.

The Company is pleased to have the Pimenton poyppyoject back and intends to do additional
geochemical work on two drill targets early in 2088d further drilling on the project in the 2010
exploration season, with funds generated from tlheeRton mine to further expand Rio Tinto’s estindate
400,000,000 tons of resource potential at Pimenton.

Tordillo

Tordillo was acquired by the Company in 2006 amd lapproximately 12 kilometres south east of the
Company’'s Pimenton property. Tordillo is a goldopper prospect on which the Company will conduct
futher explorations in the 2009 -2010 exploratieason.

Bandurrias

Bandurrias was acquired in August, 2007 by the Company by way of an option agreement. In
April, 2008 the Company did not renew its option agreement on Bandurrias on claims covering
approximately 1,982 hectares (4,896 acres) in the Fifth Region of Chile and wrote off $214,000
relating to this option agreement, but has acquired approximately 13,400 hectares (33,098 acres)
in which the Company owns a 100% interest surrounding the Bandurrias Prospect area.

La Bella

The Company has signed an option agreement toae&f90% interest on claims covering approximately
4,000 hectares (9,840 acres) (the inner circle)rasdput down additional claims covering an oubere
which encompasses an additional area of approxiyna#e000 hectares (59,280 acres) of claims located
75 kilometers southwest of Santiago, Chile.

A small field crew is prospecting the 28,000 hee$a(69,160 acres) of claims held by SAGC for gold
veins. In addition, geochemical soil sampling isngecarried out on the vein outcrops. Subsequehindr
will be based on geochemical results.

Under the terms of the Option Agreement (innerle)rthe Company has paid $30,000 and $70,000 was
paid in December, 2008, $200,000 is due on Decer2®@®, $800,000 in December 2010, $900,000 in
December 2011 and $1,000,000 in December 2012 Cbinepany will pay a 2 %% Net Smelter Royalty
from production thereatfter.

On the outer circle the Company has an obligatopay $100,000 which was paid in December, 2008,
$100,000 is due on December, 2009, $500,000 in rbeee 2010, $700,000 in December 2011,
$1,000,000 in December, 2012, $2,600,000 in Decerib&3. The Company will pay a 2 % % Net

Smelter Royalty from production thereafter.

On the inner and outer circle the Company has abamd minimum investment obligation of $50,000 in
year one, $250,000 in year two and $700,000 in feae.
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Financing Activities

In November and December 2007, the Company isstieleof 9,936,090 common shares on the exercise
of 9,936,090 warrants which expired on November 3007, for net proceeds of Cdn $397,444 or

US$390,446.

On December 18, 2007, the Company sold in a pripiteement 92,375,000 of Units of the Company at
Cdn $0.0416, each Unit consisting of one commorresbé the Company and one half common share
purchase warrant exercisable at Cdn $0.06 withxmiration date of 24 months from the closing date.

Aggregate proceeds of the offering were Cdn $3@X2pr US $4,000,000.

During the period from April, 2008 to June 2008 th& $4,000,000 private placement was supplemented
by the financing of two directors and officers betCompany of lease purchase agreements to purchase
mining equipment for the Pimenton mine totaling $849 since paid down to $433,803 as at September
30, 2008. The Company has received conditionalagbrfrom the Toronto Stock Exchange to conduct
this financing which also has certain restricti@msthe lease payments pursuant to the Loan Agreemen
which the Company has with the Overseas Privatesimrent Corporation.

On September 9, 2008 $1,913,791 was raised thraugbn-broker private placement in which three
directors, two of whom are also officers of the Quamy participated to the extent of $1,100,000. €hes
funds and the equipment lease financing have edathle Company to put its Pimenton mine into
production in July, 2008 and to declare commeimiatuction effective October 1, 2008.

On December 12, 2008 the Company received conditiapproval from the Toronto Stock Exchange to
place Units (the Offering) of up to a maximum ofrC#485,215. Each Unit will consist of one common
share (Common Share) and one half of one commame shachase warrant (each whole such warrant, a
warrant) at a price of $0.025 per Unit or up to axmum of 19,408,620 Units. The placement agenit wil
be paid 8% of the gross proceeds (the proceedsubscription of up to 15,123,600 Units. In addition
pursuant to an agreement with the agent, the Catipor will issue to the agent up to a maximum of
1,209,888 common share purchase warrants exereif@bh period of 24 months following the closirtg a
an exercise price of Cdn $0.025.An Officer and Ctive of the Corporation has agreed to subscribe to
$107,125 of the Offering on which no commissiona@rrants will be issued to Global. $378,090 of the
Offering will be used exclusively to fund optionypaents and exploration on the Company’'s 28,000
hectares La Bella gold/copper project, which liéskilometers south of Santiago, Chile, and the rizda
for general corporate purposes

Write downs and Asset Impairment

During the Company’'s year end September 30, 20@8Gbmpany wrote off exploration and mining
properties totaling $1,030,000. $867,000 of thisltevas broken down as follows: Bandurrias $214;000
Chachas Peru $172,000; Breccia $411,000 and vaoibass for $70,000. The write down of $411,000 on
the Breccia at Pimenton was work performed by tbem@any outside of the area of interest of theidgll
performed by Rio Tinto and Anglo American Norte SPhe balance of the $1,030,000 write off of
exploration and mining properties of $163,000 repres a write off of recoverable taxes that hachbee
capitalized against these properties.

The Company has taken the decision to expensxji®rations costs until it deems the project teeha
definitive resource potential as defined by Natldmatrument 43-101 which is in line with our cumte
accounting policies.

Additionally, the Company has taken the decisiowtibe down its Catedral/Rino project in the amoaht
$3,492,000 and its Cal Norte project in the amaoai$1,534,000 in accordance with Section 3063 —
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impairment of long-lived assets. Irrespective ofcte 3063 the directors and management of the
Company believe these properties will have lonigee tvalue to the Company and its shareholders.

The total amount of these write downs as of Sepézr@d, 2008 was $6,056,000.

Conclusion

This past year has been an exciting year for yamamg@any and we look forward to the upcoming year in
achieving our goal of continued expansion of therafions at the Pimenton gold/copper mine.

Paul DesLauriers Stephen W. Houghton
Chairman Chief Executive Officer

Toronto, Canada
December 18, 2008
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITIONS AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
(Expressed in United States dollars)

The following discussion is a review of the aciest results of operations and financial
condition of South American Gold and Copper Comphimyited and its consolidated
subsidiaries (“SAGC” or the “Company”) for yeargded September 30, 2008 and 2007,
together with certain trends and factors that apeeted to impact on future operations
and financial results. This information is presentes of December 16, 2008. The
discussion should be read in conjunction with thelited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and the notes to thoseenstnts. The Company’'s
consolidated financial statements and financiah deve been prepared in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted accounting priesig“GAAP”). In addition, this
discussion contains certain forward-looking statetieregarding the Company’'s
businesses and operations. These statements ae drasssumptions and judgments of
management regarding future events and resultsiahcesults may differ materially
from these statements as a result of a numberctdria many of which are beyond the
control of SAGC. For more detail on these factoeger to the section titled “Risks” in
this document.

All dollar amounts are expressed in United Stat#kuisb, except as otherwise indicated.

Additional information relating to the Company, luding the Company’s most recent
Annual Information Form, is available on SEDARnatw.sedar.com.

Forward-looking information

This management’'s discussion and analysis contamsefers to forward-looking
information. All information, other than informatioregarding historical fact, that
addresses activities, events or developments ti@tCompany believes, expects or
anticipates will or may occur in the future is famd-looking information. Forward-
looking information can often be identified by faw-looking words such as
“anticipate”, “believe”, “expect”, “plan”, “intend” “estimate”, “may”, “could”,
“potential”, “should” “will” or similar words suggging future outcomes, or other
expectations, beliefs, plans, objectives, assumgtimtentions or statements about future
events or performance. Such forward-looking infaroraincludes, without limitation,
information regarding the Company’s expected onmpdal targets with respect to its
operations and projects, estimates and/or antedpétvels and grades of future gold
and/or copper production, the estimated mine life the Pimenton gold mine,
expectations regarding future production levelsPahenton, potential mineralization,
exploration results and the Company’s future exgilon plans, the Company’s ability to
raise sufficient working capital, expectations neliyag the Company’s plans to become a
supplier of lime, development and operational pkamd objectives (including delineating
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additional mineral resources), expectations regardhe timing for the calculation of
mineral reserves, the Company’s expectations regarids dividend policy and the
anticipated grade of limestone at the Company’'ssitone deposits.

The forward-looking information in this managemsndfiscussion and analysis reflects
the current expectations, assumptions or beliefhh@fCompany based on information
currently available to the Company. With respect feoward-looking information
contained in this management’s discussion and saisalyfhe Company has made
assumptions regarding, among other things, the @awip ability to generate sufficient
cash flow from operations and capital markets toetmiés future obligations, the
regulatory framework in Chile, with respect to, amgoother things, permits, licenses,
authorizations, royalties, taxes and environmematters, the ability of management to
increase commercial mining operation at Pimentamj she Company’s ability to
continue to obtain qualified staff and equipmenaitimely and cost-efficient manner to
meet the Company’s demand.

Forward-looking information is subject to a numloérisks and uncertainties that may
cause the actual results of the Company to diffatenmally from those discussed in the
forward-looking information, and even if such adtresults are realized or substantially
realized, there can be no assurance that theyhawé the expected consequences to, or
effects on, the Company.

Factors that could cause actual results or evemtslifter materially from current
expectations include, but are not limited to: thedg and recovery of ore which is mined
varying from estimates; capital and operating cuatying significantly from estimates;
inflation; changes in exchange rates; fluctuationscommodity prices; delays in
achieving planned production levels at the Pimemgold mine caused by unavailability
of equipment, labour or supplies, climatic conditip inability to delineate additional
mineral resources and other factors including,nmatlimited to, those listed under “Risk
Factors”.

Any forward-looking information speaks only as bdetdate on which it is made and,
except as may be required by applicable securities, the Company disclaims any
intent or obligation to update any forward-lookimgormation, whether as a result of
new information, future events or results or othisewAlthough the Company believes
that the assumptions inherent in the forward-logkiformation are reasonable, forward-
looking information is not a guarantee of futurefpemance and accordingly undue
reliance should not be put on such information tdutae inherent uncertainty therein.

The mineral resource figures referred to in thimagement’s discussion and analysis are
estimates and no assurances can be given thahdieated levels of minerals will be
produced. Such estimates are expressions of judgbesed on knowledge, mining
experience, analysis of drilling results and indugiractices. Valid estimates made at a
given time may significantly change when new infation becomes available. While the
Company believes that the resource estimates eeféorin this management’s discussion
and analysis are well established, by their nataspurce estimates are imprecise and
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depend, to a certain extent, upon statistical @rmfees which may ultimately prove
unreliable. If such estimates are inaccurate oredaced in the future, this could have a
material adverse impact on the Company. Due tatfoertainty that may be attached to
inferred mineral resources, it cannot be assumetdathor any part of an inferred mineral
resource will be upgraded to an indicated or memkunineral resource as a result of
continued exploration.

Outstanding share information

As of December 16, 2008, the Company has issuedlasg of common shares and has a
total of 752,222,339 common shares outstanding. Tloenpany has 186,482,726
common share purchase warrants outstanding, eackhich is exercisable for one
common share at exercise prices of CA$0.04 to C2gthrough December 15, 2010.
Share options outstanding as of December 16, 206@) 89,949,538 of which
73,510,000, are currently exercisable at price€A$0.040 to CA$0.09 per common
share expiring at various dates through April 3M2R The principal on the Company’s
$1,600,000 convertible secured debt is convertitite 28,108,304 common shares of the
Company.

Acquisition costs of resource properties, togethveith direct exploration and
development expenses incurred thereon, are defamddcapitalized in the accounts.
Upon reaching commercial production, these capédli costs are transferred from
exploration properties to mining properties, plamd equipment are amortized into
operations using the units of production methodbtagoon proven and probable mineral
reserves and mineral resources. Management regutaibws the carrying value of each
mineral property using estimated undiscounted d&sks from each project. When
review suggests impairment, the carrying valuehef project would be reduced to the
extent it exceeded the fair value.

This discussion addresses matters which the Competfigves are important for an
understanding of its financial condition and reswdf operations as of and for the two
years ended September 30, 2008 and for its futwgppcts. It consists of the following
subsections:

* The Company’s vision, core business and strategy
» Key performance drivers

» Capability to deliver results

* Results

* Outlook

* Risks factors

The Company'’s vision, core business and strategy
The Company is a Canadian corporation, listed enTibronto Stock Exchange (TSX)

with mining and exploration activities primarily @hile. On July 1, 2004, the Company
commenced commercial production at its Pimentod guhe. Operations ceased in June
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2005 owing to unusual weather conditions. In Decam007, the Company was
successful in raising $3,974,997 with which to fustdrt-up operations at its Pimenton
gold mine. Most of the Company’s efforts have bfmused on restarting Pimenton and
effective October 1, 2008, commercial productionh&f mine was declared at the rate of
91 tons per day during the 21 days of plant opamnaduring October 2008. The Company
will continue to focus its principal efforts on Ramton to bring the mine up to a
production rate of 200 tons per day in the neximbhths. The Company is also engaged
in the exploration for and acquisition of gold awther mineral properties. The
Company’s principal exploration activities had bdesused on a potential porphyry
copper deposit located within the Pimenton areavbith the Company holds mining
claims. Pursuant to a letter of understandirlgOU”) signed in March 2007, Empresa
Minera de Mantos Blancos S.A. subsequently renadeglo American Norte S.A.
(“Anglo”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Anglo Amean, p.l.c. (“Anglo American”),
Anglo was to drill 2,000 meters of diamond drilllés, which was completed in May
2007. Discussions between the Company and Anglardegyy a potential joint venture
agreement were in process when Anglo withdrew fsueh discussions on October 30,
2008 due to uncertainty in world commodity pricés.addition, the Company holds
mining claims on Tordillo, a gold and copper pragtpend has acquired Bandurrias, a
copper prospect, and La Bella, a gold/copper paispde Company also holds interests
in two limestone deposits. The Company will conéinexploration on the Pimenton
porphyry copper deposits in the 2008-2009 explorageason and expects to conduct
further drilling on the project during the 2009-20&xploration season. As a result of
management’'s decision to focus on Pimenton, the paoyn wrote down its
Catedral/Rino project in the amount of $3,492,00@ &s Cal Norte project in the
amount of $1,534,000 in accordance with Section3386impairment of long-lived
assets. Irrespective of Section 3063 the directmrd management of the Company
believe these properties will have longer term gdtuthe Company and its shareholders.
Additionally, exploration and mining properties wewritten off totaling $1,030,000. The
Company has considered that exploration resulta@reromising, and there fore written
off its exploration costs, until it deems the paobjeo have a definitive resource potential
as defined by National Instrument 43-101. The tatabunt of these write downs as of
September 30, 2008 was $6,056,000.

Using its core mineral assets, the Company beliégvissnow positioned to grow into a
profitable mining company as it re-starts productiat its Pimenton gold mine and
develops its gold and copper prospects.

Pimenton gold mine

Pimenton encompasses 3,121 hectares (7,708 acres).

The Pimenton gold mine started operations on J0842and was shut down on June 9,
2005, when a major snow storm moved through themegausing extreme avalanche
danger at the mine site and the road leading fctions taken by management protected

the camp and plant buildings at the mine duringdteem period. However, electrical
and air compressor equipment at the mine’s maitapentrance was damaged causing a
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shut-down of operations. The plant roof was subsetiy damaged by snow load
conditions after the mine had been evacuabed.January 2008 work was started to
prepare the mine for operations.

The Company’s insurance policy contained physicaimage as well as business
interruption coverage and the Company notifiedintsurance carrier of the physical

damage and the shutdown of mining operations. Tdregany was unable to negotiate a
settlement with the insurance company and it reatifihe insurance carrier that it had
elected its right to enter into arbitration. Then@@ny’s initial business interruption

claim was for approximately $3,000,000. Followingratracted arbitration period, the

arbitrator agreed with the Company’s position buaed the Company only $826,767,
substantially less than its initial claim.

The Company raised an aggregate of $3,974,99piivate placement, which closed on
December 17, 2007. In addition, two directors afftcers of the Company financed
lease purchase agreements to purchase mining egpigar the Pimenton mine totaling
$530,162. On September 9, 2008, a further CA$1/@13was raised through a non-
brokered private placement in which three directtwes of whom are also officers of the
Company, participated in the aggregate amount d12200,000. The net proceeds from
such private placements and the equipment leagading enabled the Company to put
its Pimenton mine into production in July 2008 witbmmercial production being
declared effective October 1, 2008, at a rate oflpction of 91 tons per day during the
21 days the plant was in operation during Octol@®82 This represents a rate of
operations which was reduced from the Company'girmal plan due to its inability to
raise an intended $14,000,000 in 2006. The Compasyplans to gradually increase
production to 100 tons per day in the next twelanths with a further increase to 200
tons per day by mid-year 2010. At the present oatproduction, proven and probable
reserves are sufficient for two years. The Compangurrently working to convert
250,000 tons of drill indicated resources into fltreven and probable reserves and
continue exploration for new gold veins at Pimenton

Pimenton - porphyry copper

In March 2005, the Company entered into an LOU wRlo Tinto Mining and
Exploration Ltd. (“Rio Tinto”) whereby Rio Tinto aged to fund and complete a 2,600 to
3,000 meter diamond drill program on the potentiatphyry copper deposit located
within the Pimenton area. Following completion loé tdrill program, Rio Tinto had the
right to exercise an option to enter into a forjoaht venture option agreement. In June
2006, the Company received notification that Rintdihad terminated the joint venture
agreement with the Company. Rio Tinto provided gpsi@ation report which concluded,
among other things:

» Eight drill holes were drilled totaling 3,891 meta@f diamond drilling.

* A mineralized copper-gold porphyry system was disced.

» Although the copper and gold grades can be coresidarbeconomic at this stage,
there is the potential for a high grade core atldep

127663.v2B 10



» It recommended drilling a few holes in the mainleslto evaluate the vertical
extension of mineralization.

» Potential resources of several hundred million tares thought to be a realistic
scenario.

» Results of the exploration program done by Rio dihve added significant
value to the Pimenton project and consequentliigcshareholders.

In March 2007, the Company entered into a new LGth Wmpresa Minera de Mantos
Blancos S.A., which was subsequently renamed AAgherican Norte S.A. (Anglo) a
wholly owned subsidiary of Anglo American PLC wheyeAnglo agreed to fund and
complete a 2,000 meter diamond drill program ongbintial porphyry copper deposit
located within the Pimenton area. Late in the 2@ilean exploration season Anglo
drilled one hole to approximately 1,000 meters ength. This hole was drilled off
structure and encountered very weak mineralizatiodanuary 2008, Anglo commenced
drilling a second hole to 1,000 meters. This hels successful in achieving grades
equivalent to the grades obtained by Rio Tintorifl Holes N° 4 and 6. The Company
proceeded to enter negotiations with Anglo for entginto a joint venture agreement.
During the course of these discussions, on Oct8BeP008, Anglo American informed
the Company that it had decided to terminate furthscussions regarding such joint
venture agreement due to the uncertainty in wasldroodity prices. The Company will
continue exploration on the Pimenton porphyry copgdeposits in the 2008-2009
exploration season and expects to conduct furthiing on the project during the 2009-
2010 exploration season.

Tordillo

Tordillo is located 11.5 kilometers south-southwesPimenton and covers an area of
6,632 hectares (16,381 acres). It is in the eaHploration stage and to date the
Company has identified several gold vein structgigslar to those at Pimenton and an
area of potential porphyry copper mineralizatidrhe preliminary data suggests Tordillo
contains the upper part of a deep-seated copperagal possibly copper molybdenum
porphyry system associated with narrow high gradeé eopper veins which may be
widespread and represent a separate exploratigettafordillo is located in an area of
intense exploration activity.

Bandurrias

Bandurrias was acquired in August 2007 by the Camby way of an option agreement
for the property. Under the terms of this optiagreement, US$30,000 was paid on
signing, US$70,000 was due in six months, folloviegdfour payments of US$100,000

every six months, with a final payment at 36 morth8/S$600,000. The balance of the
$6,500,000 price or US$5,400,000 will be paid ia torm of a 5% net smelter royalty.

In April 2008, the Company did not renew its optagreement on Bandurrias which was
comprised of claims covering approximately 1,982thees (4,897 acres) in the Fifth
Region of Chile and wrote off $214,000 relating this option agreement, but has

127663.v2B 11



acquired approximately 13,400 hectares (33,098sacsarrounding the Bandurrias
Prospect area in which the Company owns a 100%estte

La Bella

The Company has signed an option agreement (th&&lla Option Agreement”) to earn
a 100% interest on claims covering approximatedp@,hectares (9,840 acres) (the inner
circle) and has put down additional claims covermgouter circle which encompasses
an additional area of approximately 24,900 hecté@é&s503 acres) of claims located 75
kilometers southwest of Santiago, Chile.

A small field crew is prospecting the 28,900 hextaf71,383 acres) of total claims held
by the Company for gold veins. In addition, geocluainsoil sampling is being carried
out on the vein outcrops. Subsequent drilling Wwél based on geochemical results after
the Company’'s Pimenton mine is in production at i@rcial production rates for at
least six months.

Under the terms of the La Bella Option Agreementér circle) the Company has paid
$30,000 and $70,000 is due in December 2008, $200rDDecember 2009, $800,000 in
December 2010, $900,000 in December 2011 and $0000n December 2012. The
Company will pay a 2%2% net smelter royalty to tb&anee from production thereafter.

On the outer circle the Company has an obligatioopay $100,000 in December 2008,
$100,000 in December 2009, $500,000 in Decembed,2®00,000 in December 2011,
$1,000,000 in December 2012 and $2,600,000 in Deee2013. The Company will pay
a 2% % net smelter royalty to the optionee of timer circle from production thereafter.

In addition, on the inner and outer circle the Camp has a combined minimum
exploration obligation of $50,000 in year one, $280 in year two and $700,000 in year
three.

Limestone deposits

Lime is used by the Chilean mining industry in mesing sulfide copper ores and in
heap leaching of gold ores.

The Chilean lime market was adversely affectedhgydevaluation of the Argentinean
peso in 2003 resulting in a flow of cheap lime fréwgentina into the Chilean lime
market for the last four years. This situation dimdncial constraints on the Company
have limited the ability of the Company capital@eits lime position. With the recovery
of the Argentinean economy in the past three y#aesdomestic demand for lime is
improving thereby allowing for increased pricing the Argentinean lime producers.
Trucking costs of Argentinean lime imported intoil€thave also increased the costs of
Argentinean lime to the Chilean mining industry @his a large consumer of lime.
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While the changing economic situation, as notedvapwill enable the Company to

continue its efforts to become a supplier of limettie Chilean copper industry, it also
strengthens the Company’s position as it reviewerrstive strategies for the sale, joint
venture or spin-off of the Catedral, Rino and Cabrtd limestone properties. In

accordance with section 3063 — impairment of Iaagd assets the Company wrote off
an aggregate of $5,026,000 of exploration and deweént costs relating to

Catedral/Rino ($3,492,000) and Cal Norte ($1,53@)00

Key performance drivers
Pimenton gold mine

Operations at Pimenton had been suspended from18yrZ005 until July 2008, due to
the major snow storm damage. During December 20@/Company was successful in
raising $3,974,997 to initiate the restart of ofiers at its Pimenton gold mine. The
Company has scaled back its original plans forRimeenton gold mine announced in
2006 in connection with the Company’s initial plaaise up to $14,000,000. The
Pimenton gold mine has been prepared for a 50 &ndpy rate of production to be
gradually increased to 200 tons per day. The cupesven and probable reserves will
support this operation for nearly two years andcth flow to develop additional proven
and probable mineral reserves. The Company declammmercial production at
Pimenton effective October 1, 2008, at 91 tonstiagr

Pimenton - porphyry copper

Rio Tinto notified the Company that it had termethtthe joint venture with the
Company. The 3,891 meter diamond drill program cated by Rio Tinto identified a
copper gold porphyry system and added significaaltier to the Pimenton porphyry
copper project.

In March 2007 the Company entered into a new LOlhwinglo a wholly owned
subsidiary of Anglo American PLC (Anglo Americanhereby Anglo agreed to fund and
complete a 2,000 meter diamond drill program ongbintial porphyry copper deposit
located within the Pimenton area. Anglolled one hole to approximately 1,000 meters
in length. This hole was drilled off structure asmucountered very weak mineralization.
Anglo completed a second hole to 1,000 meters wivabl equivalent in grade to Rio
Tinto’s drill holes No. 4 and 6, but drilled to D@ meters compared to the 600 meters in
Rio Tinto’s drill hole No. 4.

Anglo informed the Company that it wished to exsgdits right under the LOU to enter
into joint venture discussions. These discussweaie abruptly terminated by Anglo on
October 30, 2008. The Company will continue exgloraon the Pimenton porphyry
copper deposits in the 2008-2009 exploration seasdrexpects to do further drilling on
the project during the 2009-2010 exploration season
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Capability to deliver results

The mining industry is intensely competitive in allits phases. The Company competes
with many companies possessing greater technicdititss and financial resources than
are available to it.

All phases of the Company’s operations are sulig@nvironmental regulation in the

various jurisdictions in which it operates. Envinoental legislation is evolving in a

manner which will require stricter standards andoex@ment, increased fines and
penalties for non-compliance, more stringent emvitental assessments of proposed
projects and a heightened degree of responsilfititycompanies and their officers,

directors and employees.

The Company is subject to exchange variations agasfunctional currency, the United
States dollar, as it purchases certain goods anitss in Chilean pesos and Canadian
dollars. The Chilean peso fluctuates in line withbasket of currencies currently
consisting of the US dollar, the Euro and the Japaryen. The Central Bank of Chile
from time to time re-weights the percentage of easgghplaced on a given currency in
the basket and may from time to time replace onddmourrency in the basket with
another world currency. The Company’s revenueanyf, in the future, will be primarily
derived from the mining and sale of gold, coppiengktone and lime and the disposition
of interests in mineral properties or interestsated thereto. The price of these
commodities has fluctuated widely, particularly recent years, and is affected by
numerous factors beyond the Company’s control dholy international, economic and
political trends, expectations of inflation, curcgnexchange fluctuations, interest rates
and global or regional consumptive patterns.

Pimenton gold mine

On July 1, 2004, the Company commenced commerctygtion and incurred some
normal and some unexpected start up operating grablFrom July 1, 2004 to June 19,
2005 the mine experienced operating losses.

On June 9, 2005, a major storm system moved thrdbhghCentral Andes causing

extensive avalanche activity throughout the regiDoiring a period of 10 days, the storm
dropped almost four meters of snow, causing extramadanche danger at the mine and
along the road leading to it.

On December 29, 2003, Compania Minera Pimenton @QMentered into a loan
agreement with the Overseas Private InvestmentdZatipn (“OPIC”) for $2,800,000
project financing.

The loan agreement contained financial and operaticovenants, including, among
other things, a minimum working capital ratio, aiiled, limitations on trade debt and
short term credit facilities, achievement of minmmuexploration drilling, minimum
reserve development and minimum production levels.
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Due to events at the mine, CMP advised OPIC thddelieved it would not be in
compliance with financial and operating covenatitésoloan agreement for the calendar
quarters through and until October 1, 2006. OnteSeper 30, 2006 and September 30,
2007 the Company notified OPIC that it was not ampliance with the financial and
operating covenants of the loan agreement and @Ritted CMP an additional waiver
until June 30, 2009.

The Company raised sufficient funds to restart afi@ns at Pimenton in December 2007
on a reduced basis of 50 tons per day to be grgdualeased to 200 tons per day. The
Pimenton mine was declared to be in commercial yption affective October 1, 2008,

producing at the rate of 91 tons per day during2hedays it was in operation during

October 2008.

Potential porphyry copper

The Rio Tinto 3,891 meter diamond drill programntiieed a mineralized copper gold
porphyry system with potential resources of seviesaldred million tonnes.

In January 2008, Anglo commenced drilling on a sdchole to 1,000 meters and carry
out additional mapping at Pimenton before makimgeision to enter into a joint venture
agreement on the project. This hole was succeasfiilAnglo entered into joint venture
discussions with the Company. On October 30, 20@8,Company was informed by
Anglo that it was terminating discussions on théntjoventure agreement due to
uncertainties in world commodity prices.

The Company has incurred sufficient explorationgeexlitures to maintain the Pimenton
porphyry in good standing. As of September 30, 2@08rote off the carrying value of
$411,000 relating to past exploration costs on @ aot of interest to Rio Tinto or
Anglo in line with its policy of writing off explations expenditures until a resource
potential in accordance with NI 43-101 has beealbdished.

Tordillo

The presence of strong extensive explosive bredsiaeminiscent of the porphyry
copper systems at large existing copper mines ite Ctsubsequent exploration should
bring into perspective the vein potential and ds&hhif the porphyry system is large
enough to host possible economic copper mineralizatfThe Company is deferring
exploration activities while it is bringing Pimenton line.

Bandurrias

The Company expects to conduct a diamond drill gnogto determine ore continuity
from an adjacent copper producing property durimg 2009-2010 exploration season
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based of copper prices at that time. The Compangefsrring exploration activities
during the 2008-2009 exploration season while liringing Pimenton on line.

La Bella

The Company has signed the La Bella Option Agreeérnterearn a 100% interest on
claims covering approximately 4,000 hectares (9&e¥@s) (the inner circle) and has put
down additional claims covering an outer circle ethencompasses an additional area of
approximately 24,900 hectares (61,503 acres) afnsldocated 75 kilometers southwest
of Santiago, Chile.

A small field crew is prospecting the 28,900 hee$a71,383 acres) of claims held by the
Company for gold veins. In addition, geochemical sampling is being carried out on

the vein outcrops. Subsequent drilling will be lthssm geochemical results and an
airborne magnetic survey after the Company’s Pioremhine has been put back into
operation which, as previously announced, was Iy 2008.

Under the terms of the La Bella Option Agreementér circle) the Company has paid
$30,000 and $70,000 is due in December 2008, $200rDDecember 2009, $800,000 in
December 2010, $900,000 in December 2011 and $0000n December 2012. The
Company will pay a 2%2% net smelter royalty to tb&anee from production thereafter.

On the outer circle the Company has an obligatioopay $100,000 in December 2008,
$100,000 in December 2009, $500,000 in Decembed,2®100,000 in December 2011,
$1,000,000 in December 2012 and $2,600,000 in Deee2013. The Company will pay
a 2% % net smelter royalty to the optionee of timer circle from production thereafter.

In addition, on the inner and outer circle the Camp has a combined minimum
exploration obligation of $50,000 in year one, $280 in year two and $700,000 in year
three.

The Company has taken the decision to expensaptsrations costs until it deems the
project to have resource potential as defined byN101. Therefore the Company wrote
off the balance of $31,000 in exploration coststlf@r year ended September 30, 2008.

Limestone deposits

The Chilean lime market was adversely affectedhgydevaluation of the Argentinean
peso in 2003 resulting in a flow of cheap lime fréwgentina into the Chilean lime

market for the last four years. With the recoveiryhe Argentinean economy in the past
two years the domestic demand for lime is improvingreby allowing for increased

pricing by the Argentinean lime producers. Truckaugts of Argentinean lime imported
into Chile have also increased the costs of Argesin lime to the Chilean mining

industry which is a large consumer of lime.
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The Company’s limestone deposits at Catedral and Noate contain high grade

limestone which, when calcined, can produce limat tihe Company’'s management
believes will qualify for use by the Chilean minimglustry. The Company believes that
the Cal Norte lime project will shortly be able tcompete against Argentinean lime
imports. While the changing economic situation, raged above, will enable the

Company to continue its efforts to become a supptiehe Chilean copper industry, it
also strengthens the Company’s position as it vevialternative strategies for the sale,
joint venture or spin-off of the Catedral, Rino a@@l Norte limestone properties.
Financial constraints have limited the Company$itsglio develop its lime prospects.

As at September 30, 2008, the Company had congdl$®,492,000 (2007 - $3,439,000)
to finance a drilling program on Catedral /Rino ampleted a preliminary feasibility
study for construction of a 1,320,000 ton per dayacity cement manufactory facility on
the project as well as a preliminary feasibilitydst for constructions of a 600 ton per day
lime kiln on the Catedral property. The Compangteroff the balance of $3,492,000 in
mining properties and exploration costs relating&tedral as the properties had been on
care and maintenance for more than three yearsdordance with section 3063 —
impairment of long — lived assets, as it focusegitorts on its Pimenton gold mine.

As at September 30, 2008, the Company had congdibi, 534,000 (2007 - $1,463,000)
to finance a bankable feasibility study on the @cbjand for environmental permitting
and further mine development on the project. Altffothe Company has incurred
sufficient explorations expenditures to maintaie tbatedral property in good standing
until September 30, 2008, it wrote off the carryiradue of $1,534,000 during the current
year in accordance with sections 3063 — impairméfdng-lived assets.

Selected Consolidated Financial Information
The following table presents a summary of the Camjzafinancial information for the

past three years. The Company’s fiscal year endseptember 30.
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

2008 2007 2006

$ $ $
Precious metal revenue - - 4
Net loss 8,570 3,750 3,438
Basic and diluted loss per share 0.01 0.01 0.01
Total assets 20,731 20,990 20,644
Long term financial liabilities (note 1) 14,940 6,320 3,110
Cash dividends Nil Nil Nil

Note (1) : Includes option payments of La Bellaboty $8,750,000.

127663.v2B 17



Results

2008

Critical accounting policies and estimates
Asset Impairment

The carrying values of producing mineral propertiesluding properties placed on a
care and maintenance basis and related deferrezhéipres, are reviewed when events
or changes in circumstances arise that may rasimpairments in the carrying value of
those assets. Estimated future net cash flowsnamdiscounted basis, are calculated for
each property using: estimated recoverable resergssmated future metal price
realization (considering historical and currentes, price trends and related factors); and
estimated operating, capital and other cash flostintates of future cash flows are
subject to risks and uncertainties. It is possib& changes could occur which may affect
the recoverability of the carrying value of minepabperties.

The Company wrote down its Catedral/Rino projedhi& amount of $3,492,000 and its
Cal Norte project in the amount of $1,534,000 iccadance with Section 3063 —

impairment of long-lived assets. Irrespective ofctiém 3063 the directors and

management of the Company believe these propeviiebave longer term value to the

Company and its shareholders. Additionally, exgloraand mining properties were

written off totaling $1,030,000. The Company hassidered that exploration results are
not promising, and there fore written off its exaliton costs, until it deems the project to
have a definitive resource potential as definedNbgional Instrument 43-101. The total
amount of these write downs as of September 338 2&3 $6,056,000.

Reserves

Mineral reserves will be calculated in accordandth WMational Instrument 43-101 (“NI
43-101"), a rule adopted by Canadian securities iaidtrators as the standard of
disclosure for mineral projects. This estimate seduto determine mine viability, mine
life and amortization rates. The estimation of Resgis based on drill hole information,
historical mining results, historical metallurgigakults, estimated future operating costs
and estimated future metal prices. A “Qualified @@, as defined by NI 43-101,
performs the Reserves estimate.

Amortization
The Company uses the units-of-production methodioortization of mineral properties

and some of its fixed assets based on the Resefwgs.significant changes in the
Reserves could impact the amount of annual amtidiza
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Inventory

The Company values its concentrate inventorieseatawer of cost or realizable value at
the end of the reporting period. Realizable vahmudes metal prices, net of treatment
charges and freight. Metal prices can be subjedidoificant change from period to

period. At September 30, 2008, all concentrate ritvées were recorded at realizable
value.

Future Tax Assets and Liabilities

Future tax assets and liabilities are calculatédguthe asset and liability method. Under
the asset and liability method, future tax assetsliabilities are recognized for the future
tax consequences attributable to differences betwbe financial statement carrying
amounts of existing assets and liabilities andrthespective tax bases. Future tax assets
and liabilities are measured using current taxstaiéne effect on future tax assets and
liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognizedncome in the period the change is
known. To the extent that the Company considets ibe more likely than not that a
future tax asset will be recovered, a tax asselt lvél set up, otherwise the Company
provides a valuation allowance against the exdesspossible that changes could occur
in the future that may affect the recoverabilitytioé carrying value of future tax assets
and a write-down may be required.

Reclamation

The Company provides for the fair value of lialest and capitalized costs for asset
retirement obligations in the period in which theg incurred. Over time, the liability is
accreted to its present value and the capitalizstl is amortized over the useful life of
the related asset. Asset retirement obligation®hligations of the Company that arise as
a result of an existing law, regulation or contnatated to asset retirements. Estimates of
the liability associated with the retirement of asset are based on current laws and
regulations and the expected resulting costs,fallhich are subject to change. If actual
costs of reclamation exceed the recorded amountCidwm@pany will record a loss.
Alternatively, if reclamation costs incurred aresdethan those recorded, the Company
will record a gain.

Consolidations of Financial Statements

The Company’s consolidated financial statementgegsented in U.S. dollars and have
been prepared in accordance with Canadian GAAPhndnie described in note 2 to such
statements. The preparation of financial statementiccordance with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions fteat the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities at the date of the finansiatements and the reported amounts and
expenses during the reporting period. Managemeniews its estimates and
assumptions on an ongoing basis using the mostrdumformation available; however,
actual amounts could materially differ from thoseséd on estimates and assumptions.
Management's critical accounting estimates, whigplya to the assessment for the
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impairment of exploration and mining properties avaritten-off during the year ended
on September 30, 2008 totaling $6,056,000.

Foreign currency translation and transactions

The Company’s functional currency is the U.S. dollthe Company’s foreign currency
transactions, balances and integrated operationsnaated in foreign currencies are
translated into the Company’s reporting currencyg.Udollars, as follows:

Monetary assets and liabilities are translatedhat exchange rates in effect at the
consolidated balance sheet dates. Non-monetarysaasd liabilities are translated at
rates prevailing at the respective transactionsd®evenues and expenses are translated
at average rates prevailing during the year, with éxception of amortization, which is
translated at the historic rate of the related tasBeanslation gains and losses are
reflected on the consolidated statements of omersitideficit and comprehensive loss.
The Company’s operations expose it to signifidrdtuations in foreign exchange rates.

To discharge its responsibilities for financial oefing and for safeguarding of assets,
management believes that it has established apatepystems of internal control which

provide reasonable assurance, at appropriate tuHtthe assets are maintained and
accounted for in accordance with its policies ahdt tthe transactions are recorded
accurately on the Company’s books and records.

Management has identified the following criticatacnting estimates that could have a
material impact on the Company’s financial statetsien

Mineral reserves will be calculated by the end afendar 2008 in accordance with
National Instrument 43-101, as required by Canadeuaurities regulatory authorities. It
should be noted that mineral reserve estimatesimapeecise and depend partly on
statistical inferences drawn from geological dat&jch may prove to be unreliable.
Future production could differ significantly fronstenated mineral reserves because of
differences between actual and estimated minetaliza

The fair value of share options used to calculatengensation expense has been
estimated using the Black-Scholes valuation model.

Financial Instruments

Effective October 1, 2007, the Company adoptedG@headian Institute of Chartered
Accountants’ new Handbook Section 1530, “Compreiventncome”, Section 3855,

“Financial Instruments”, and Section 3861, “Finahdinstruments” — Disclosure and
Presentation”. These standards were adopted onospgutive basis but calculated
retrospectively; accordingly, the comparative ficiahstatements for the prior year have
not been restated.
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Comprehensive income

Section 1530 introduces new requirements for sgnatwhen certain gains and losses
(“other comprehensive income” or “OCI”) must be pararily presented outside of net,
loss. Comprehensive income includes both net logs @CI. OCI is the change in
shareholders’ equity from non-owner sources whrehrat included in the calculation of
net loss until realized. Cumulative changes in @& included in Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income (“AOCI”), which is presentecaanew category of shareholders’
equity on the balance sheet. The Company had nar@@actions during the year ended
September 30, 2008, and no opening nor closingibasafor AOCI.

Financial instruments recognition, measurement, didosure and presentation

Under section 3855, all financial instruments alassified into one of these five
categories: held-for-trading, held-to-maturity istreents, loans and receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets or other finahkabilities. All financial instruments
and derivatives are measured on the balance slaet al fair value upon initial
recognition. Subsequent measurement depends oniniti@ classification of the
instrument. Held-for-trading financial assets areasured at fair value, with changes in
fair value recognized in net earnings (loss). Aafali-for-sale financial instruments are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair vakerded in OCI until the instrument is
derecognised or impaired. Loans and receivabléd;thematurity investments and other
financial liabilities are measured at amortizedtcéd derivative instruments, including
embedded derivatives, are recorded in the balameet st fair value unless they qualify
for the normal sales and purchases exemption. @saimgthe fair value of derivatives
that are not exempt are recorded in net loss.

Upon adoption of these new standards, the Compasydésignated its cash as held-for-
trading, which is measured at fair value. Recemsbare designated as loans and
receivables, which are measured at amortized ddstounts payable and accrued
liabilities are designated as other liabilities,ievhare measured at amortized cost. At
September 30, 2008, the Company had neither alaifabsale nor held-to-maturity
financial instruments.

The Company evaluated the impact of Section 3858sa2007 financial statements and

recorded a transition adjustment to opening deficithe 2007 year in the amount of
$22,000 to reflect the impact of adopting the dffecinterest rate method.

Section 3861 identifies and details informatiotéodisclosed in the financial statements.
Hedging
This standard specifies the circumstances undechnMhedge accounting is permissible

and how hedge accounting may be performed. The @oynpurrently does not hold any
financial instruments designated for hedge accaognti
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Accounting Changes

Section 1506 revised the standards on changesauating policy, estimates or errors to
require a change in accounting policy to be appietdospectively (unless doing so is
impracticable or is specified otherwise by a newoaating standard), changes in
estimates to be recorded prospectively, and prieriod errors to be corrected
retrospectively. Voluntary changes in accountindicyoare allowed only when they
result in financial statements that provide rekalbihd more relevant information. In
addition, these revised standards call for enhardiedlosures about the effects of
changes in accounting policies, estimates and fmar the financial statements. The
impact of this new standard cannot be determinéid such time as the Company makes
a change in accounting policy, other than the chamgsulting from the implementation
of the new CICA Handbook standards.

Future Accounting Changes
Inventory

In June 2007, a replacement section for inventpi8estion 3031 “Inventories” was
issued and provides guidance on the determinaficosi and its subsequent recognition
as an expense, including any write-down to neizalle value. It also provides guidance
on the cost formulas that are used to assign tostsentories and eliminates the use of
the “last-in, first-out” method of accounting arsdeffective for the fiscal years beginning
on or after January 1, 2008.

Goodwill and intangible assets

The Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountantseidshe new Handbook Section 3064,
“Goodwill and Intangible Assets”, which will repla&Section 3062, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets”. The new standard establishesed standards for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of gobdwil intangible assets. The new
standard also provides guidance for the treatmiepteproduction and start-up costs and
requires that these costs be expensed as incilinechew standard applies to annual and
interim financial statements relating to fiscal igebeginning on or after October 1, 2008.
Management is currently assessing the impact cfetimew accounting standards on its
consolidated financial statements.

International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”

In 2006, the Canadian Accounting Standards Boadd3$B”) published a new strategic
plan that will significantly affect financial reparg requirements for Canadian
companies. The AcSB strategic plan outlines thevexgence of Canadian GAAP with
IFRS over an expected five year transitional peribd February 2008 the AcSB
announced that 2011 is the changeover date folghbsted companies to use IFRS,
replacing Canada’s own GAAP. The date is for imbeand annual financial statements
relating to fiscal years beginning on or after Jagul, 2011. The transition date of
January 1, 2011 will require the restatement fomgarative purposes of amounts
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reported by the Company for the year ended Septer@bél. While the Company has
begun assessing the adoption of IFRS for 2011 fittacial reporting impact of the
transition to IFRS cannot be reasonably estimattéaisatime.

In addition, see note 2 of the financial stateméBismmary of significant accounting
policies”.

Results of operations - 2008

The Company had no revenues in 2008 or in 2007. Odwpany incurred losses of
$8,570,000 in 2008 of which $5,026,000 was incumieé to a write down of costs
associated with its mining and exploration costsamcounting purposes, in accordance
with section 3063 — impairment of long-lived asséts additional $1,030,000 of write
downs were incurred on exploration projects deemeadpromising until the projects
have resource potential as defined by NI 43-101.

The Company expects to have revenues from its Ronegold mine in its fiscal year
ended 2009. The mine was declared to be in comailgrmduction at 91 tons per day
effective October 1, 2008. Plans are to graduaktygase production to 200 tons per day
over the next twelve months. Revenues for goldesibnd copper sales from the mine
are expected to cover operating costs of the miue generate sufficient funds to cover
capital expenditure required to sustain operatibegond March 2009 which include
construction of the first stage of an expandedhigsl pond estimated to cost $500,000; In
addition the Company plans to purchase two snow estimated to cost $500,000 This is
an optional purchase. The Company would also lkénstall a system to convert the
Knelson Concentrate the mine is currently produaing gold dore bars estimated to cost
$400,000. This is an optional purchase but woutilifate operations in the future. These
capital expenditures total $1,400,000. The abitifythe Pimenton mine operations to
cover its operating costs and generate sufficiemtl$ to cover capital expenditure budget
is dependant on the prices of gold, silver and egpgependant on the gold veins in the
mine retaining their width, continuity and gradeooé; dependant on snow conditions in
the Chilean winter which runs from May 2008 to Dmber 2008; dependant on the
future price of diesel fuel; dependant on the pdtéhe Chilean peso relative to the US
Dollar and dependant of the ability of the Compémyetain its current work force. In
addition the Company must successfully renegotiageterms of its loan with OPIC in
the amount of $1,556,000 on which the Company haaizer of Principal payment from
OPIC until June 30, 2009 at which time the loaynpants are to be renegotiated.

The Company sells its gold, silver and copper cotrage directly to the Enami smelter
which is owed by the State of Chile through its evahip of CODELCO. Enami pays for
85% of the value of shipment the week followindivdy and the balance of the
payment is made one to two months following thes dditreceipt of the concentrates. As
the Company increases the production to 200 tonsig@ethis one to two months delay
in receipt of the balance of the 15% payment walige a short term cash flow shortfall
for the Company. In addition during winter montHsoperation the 80 kilometer road
into the mine site can be closed for extended desrim time thereby not allowing
shipment of copper concentrate to Enami. The CogipaKnelson Concentrate,
however, which contains 85% of the gold value poeduby the mine can be either
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helicoptered, or if the Company is in a positionptarchase the snow cats described
above, the Company will be in a position to delittee Knelson gold concentrate to a
point accessible by truck and delivery to Enami peoteed from that point.

The ability of the Company to produce its own ga@é at the mine site would further
increase its flexibility both in delivery to Enamhiring winter months or by allowing the
Company to ship the gold dore bars directly to lal gmelter in Europe or Canada which
would eliminate the one to two months delay in igicef payment from Enami.

Amortization expense decreased by $666,000 to $05r02008 from $681,000 in 2007.

This reduction was due to the capitalization of dimation expenses against property
development costs in 2008 of $636,000 when it becalear that the Pimenton mine
would be put back into operation. The remaininguotidn of $30,000 was due to certain
mining equipment becoming fully amortized.

Temporary mine shut down costs were $50,000 intiledve months ended September
30, 2008 compared to $119,000 for the same penidD07. The reduction of $69,000
was due to the mine start up activities which wemmmenced during the twelve month
ended September 30, 2008.

General and Administrative costs in the twelve mergnded September 30, 2008 were
$1,550,000 compared to $1,753,000 for the samegari 2007. The $203,000 decrease
was due to a reduction in: (i) professional fee$@&45,759 which included fees paid to
Northern Securities of $316,726, retainer fees paid former director of the Company
of $29,620, fees paid to a former officer of then@pany of $40,821, financial advisory
fees of $118,059 paid to one former director wha watso and officer of the Company
and one former officer of the Company; (ii) reny $0,587; (iii) overhead by $44,953;
(iv) shareholders expenses by $52,350; and (v)uatty and other expenses decreased
by $33,643. An increase in salaries of $333,318urnance of $16,782, taxes and
penalties of $19,019, royalties of $19,687, andcalianeous and other expenses of
$53,641 was due to restart of operations of theeRion mine.

Stock based compensation was $398,000 during trevewmonth period ended
September 30, 2008 compared to $215,000 for thes g@riod in 2007. On April 30,
2008, 2,339,538 common stock options were gramtedrntew director of the Company at
an exercise price of CA$0.05 per share, exercis@bla period of four years from the
date of issuance. The options were valued at avidire of $27,792, using the Black-
Scholes valuation model, assuming a risk-free cdt@.04%. On April 29, 2008 an
officer and director received 1,000,000 bonus shawued at $44,474 using the TXS
closing price of CA$0.045. Also, the Company isseedMarch 13, 2008 25,000,000
common stock options exercisable at CA$0.045 paresfor a period of four years from
the date of issuance, which were issued to: (iPtesident of the Company (10,000,000
options); and (ii) three new directors and two seg\directors who are not officers of the
Company (15,000,000 options). These options werevidued at $312,672, using the
Black —Scholes valuation model, assuming a ris&e-fiate of 3.6%, no dividend, and
volatility factor of 80% and expensed as stock-Hasempensation. In addition, seven
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employees who are not officers of the Company wesarded a total of 1,950,000
common stock options having a five year life withmediate vesting at a price of
CA$0.045 per share. These options were fair vahte®b7,595 using the Black-Scholes
valuation model, assuming a risks-free rate of 3.68cdividend, and volatility factor of

80% and expensed as stock-based compensation. dimpa@y recognized the total

stock based compensation of $442,533 (2007 - $0@Y & which $44,314 (2007 — nil)

charged to mine development and $398,259 chargstbté based compensation.

Warrant revaluation expense was $90,000 in theviveionth period ended September
30, 2008 compared to $733,000 for the same pemo@007. Warrant revaluation
expenses represent the fair value of the extengedants in excess of the fair value of
the warrants being extended at the extension datdsis charged to expense. In the
twelve months ended September 30, 2008, 16,63m62&nts expiring on January 31,
2008, were extended to March 31, 2008 and therrexkpi20,000,000 warrants expiring
on October 21, 2006, were extended two times; fosOctober 22, 2007 and then to
April 22, 2008 when they expired. These warramthgations resulted in an expense of
$83,845. The fair value of the warrants were amsigusing the Black-Scholes valuation
model assuming risk free interest rates of 1.75%.24%, no dividend and a volatility
factor of 80%. Warrant revaluation expenses in@@dsy a further $6,000 to a total of
$90,000. The $6,316 was related to the issuanoewfbroker units being issued on the
exercise of the original 1,435,000 warrants.

The foreign exchange gain was $256,000 for thevievehonths ended September 30,
2008 compared to $2,000 loss for the same peri@d@7. Participants in the December
17, 2007 private placement locked in a US dollaC&madian dollar exchange rate with
the Company prior to the actual private placemeWhen the shares were issued it
resulted in a foreign exchange gain of $233,00@¢heOexchange gains amounted to
$23,000.

During 2008, other income was $15,000 due to the ab$9,000 in fixed assets and

$6,000 due to rent equipment. During 2007, the Guompissued common shares in

settlement of various liabilities, including empésytermination, interest, notes and other
payables. The total of such liabilities exceedetlfthr value of common shares issued in
settlement thereof by $155,000 which was creditedther income. The shares were
valued using the TSX closing price on the date guig the issuance date of such
shares. Other income also includes $420,000 priyrfanim insurance recoveries.

Exploration and mining properties were written-défring the year ended on September
30, 2008 totaling $6,056,000 with $5,026,000 of thital broken down as follows:
Catedral $3,492,000, Cal Norte $1,534,000, in ammce with section 3063 —
impairment of long-lived assets, and Bandurrias4$200; Chachas Peru $172,000;
Breccia $411,000 and various others for $70,00@ Whte down of $411,000 on the
Breccia at Pimenton represents work performed ley Gompany outside the area of
interest of the drilling performed by Rio Tinto aAeglo. The Company has taken the
decision to expense its exploration costs untdldems the project to have definitive
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resource potential as defined by National Instrun#3:101. The balance of $163,000
represents a write-off of recoverable taxes thal baen capitalized against these
properties. No exploration properties were writtéhin 2007.

Liquidity and capital resources

The acquisition, exploration, financing, and depehent of natural resources require the
expenditure of significant funds before producti@ommences. Historically, the
Company has financed these activities through #iselance of common shares, the
exercise of options and common share purchase migyretne issuance of promissory
notes and debentures, bank debt and extended frermgreditors.

The Company raised an aggregate of $3,974,99phvate placement which closed on
December 17, 2007. In addition, two directors afftcers of the Company financed
lease purchase agreements to purchase mining egpigar the Pimenton mine totaling
$530,162. On September 9, 2008, a further CA$17/@13was raised through a non-
brokered private placement in which three directtwes of whom are also officers of the
Company, participated in the aggregate amount d$X;200,000. These funds and the
equipment lease financing have enabled the Comparput its Pimenton mine into
production in July 2008 with commercial productioeing declared effective October 1,
2008, at a rate of production of 91 tons per ddhis represents a rate of operations
which was reduced from the Company’s original pthre to its inability to raise an
intended $14,000,000 in 2006. The Company hassptagradually increase production
to 200 tons per day in the next twelve months Witther increases to 300 ton per day by
mid year 2010. At the present rate of productiorgven and probable reserves are
sufficient for two years. The Company is curremtlgrking to convert 250,000 tons of
drill indicated resources into the proven and pbbdaeserves and continue exploration
for new gold veins at Pimenton.

The Company had raised sufficient funds to restperations at Pimenton in May, 2008
but delays in the receipt of certain plant equiphustayed the restart of operations of the
plant until mid-July 2008. In the meantime minirgvdlopment operations continued.

The delay in starting plant operations has causedogking capital shortfall of
approximately $1,600,000.

At September 30, 2008, cash was $153,000 and $22n06urrent and restricted cash,
respectively.

To preserve its cash position the Company plarotwentrate its efforts on Pimenton
and substantially defer expenditures on other ptsje

This working capital deficit at September 30, 2@98xpected to be reduced by revenues

and operating profit from the Company’s Pimentofdgaine which began commercial
operations at 91 tons per day effective Octob@008. The Company plans to gradually
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increase production to 200 tons per day over tix¢ twmeslve months. A large part of the

working capital deficits at September 30, 2008 s treatment of the Company’s
$1,556,000 loan from OPIC as currently due. The gamy has received a waiver of
principal payment of the loan until June 30, 20B8or to June 30, 2009 the Company
and OPIC have agreed to renegotiate the repayneentstof this loan. The risks

associated with achieving a positive working cdpjpasition are described under
“Results of Operations — 2008”.

On April 16, 2007, the shareholders authorizedGbenpany to apply for a certificate of
continuance under the Canada Business Corporationghe “CBCA”) continuing the
Company as if it had been incorporated under th€&BThe continuance was applied
for and completed. As a result of the continuarte €ompany's authorized capital
consists of an unlimited number of common sharéls mo par value.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividendsdoes not foresee the declaration
or payment of dividends in the near future. Angigsien to pay dividends on its shares
will be made by the board of directors on the basithe Company’s earnings, financial

requirements and other conditions existing at guttire time.

On March 13, 2007 the Company enter into an LOUwihglo. Anglo drilled 2,000
meters of diamond drill holes under the terms & HOU. The Company and Anglo
American were in the process of entering into atjgenture agreement on the Pimenton
porphyry copper deposit when, on October 30, 2008jlo American informed the
company that it was withdrawing from the LOU arebatiations on the joint venture
agreement were terminated.

Contractual obligations

At September 30, 2008, the Company’s contractudigations are summarized as
follows:
Payments due by September 30,
Contractual obligations, excluding interest paymaéirt thousands)
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 and Total

thereafter
$ $ $ $ $ $
OPIC loan 1,556 - - - - 1,556
Pimenton notes - 1,944 - - - 1,944
Convertible secured debentures - - - - 1,600 1,600
Capital leases 151 164 125 - - 440
La Bella option payments (1) 550 2,000 1,600 2,000 2,600 8,750
Tailings pond expansion 500 - - - - 500

Catedral prospect - 150 - 150

2,757 4,258 1,725 2.000 4.200 14,940
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Note (1).The Company is only obligated to make the optioyngents on either the inner circle or the outer
circle as long as it desires to keep the underlgiagns. The Company may drop either or both timeiror
outer circle at any time and no further option paeyits are due to be paid.

The Executive Vice President - Director, Claims dmahd Management and the
Executive Vice President-Director of Exploratiorgthp directors of the Company hold
the non-controlling interest in the Catedral pras@and the Company has agreed to lend
such officers and directors up to an additiona$@,000 for development costs.

La Bella

The Company has signed the La Bella Option Agree¢rerearn a 100% interest on
claims covering approximately 4,000 hectares (9&8#@s) (the inner circle) and has put
down additional claims covering an outer circle ethencompasses an additional area of
approximately 16,000 hectares of claims locateckilimeters southwest of Santiago,
Chile.

A small field crew is prospecting the 28,90€ctares (71,383 acres) of claims held by the
Company for gold veins. In addition, geochemical sampling is being carried out on
the vein outcrops. Subsequent drilling will be lthem geochemical results and an
airborne magnetic survey.

Under the terms of the La Bella Option Agreementér circle) the Company has paid
$30,000 and $70,000 is due at the end of the y&ar (December 2008), $200,000 in
December 2009, $800,000 in December 2010, $900j60@ecember 2011 and

$1,000,000 in December 2012. The Company will p&y#6 net smelter royalty from

production thereafter.

On the outer circle the Company has an obligatiopay $100,000 in December 2008,
$100,000 in December 2009, $500,000 in Decembed,2HA00,000 in December 2011,
$1,000,000 in December 2012, $ 2,600,000 in Dece@®&3. The Company will pay a
2%2% net smelter royalty from production thereafter.

In addition, on the inner and outer circle the Camp has a combined minimum
exploration obligation of $50,000 in year one, $280 in year two and $700,000 in year
three.

The Company must make an additional capital comtiobh of $394,000 to Cal Norte to
earn its 60% equity interest.

Result of operations- 2007

The Company incurred losses of $3,750,000 in 20@7%3,438,000 in 2006.

There were no revenues in 2007. Revenues from gioBR,000 and from silver and
copper of $2,000 in 2006 represent residual praoiicsold subsequent to the mine

shutdown. In addition, during 2006 the Company bpdrating income of $24,000 as a
result of the Rio Tinto drilling program on the pbyry copper project.
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Amortization expense decreased by $223,000. DuzZidg@6 the Company recorded
additional amortization to reflect roof damagetst Pimenton mine.

Temporary closure expenses decreased by $386,0R0L&000 in 2007 from $505,000
in 2006. Insurance expense was down by $25,000 2806 included a one time

employee termination charge of $361,000. Tempochrsure consists of salaries, repair
and maintenance, fuel and related costs.

General and administrative expenses increased B¢ &30 due to initiation and
termination costs of management and financial adyisgreements of $525,000 and
Chief Executive Officer compensation of $59,000s8@ssociated with the management
and financial advisory agreement consists of 8h0(000), salaries ($70,000), insurance
($10,000) and shares issued in connection with fthencial advisory agreement
($435,000).

Stock based compensation of $215,000 representithealue of 1,000,000 common

shares ($37,000) and 10,000,000 share options [@1JBissued to the President who is
also a director of the Company. The shares welgedassued using the TSX closing
price on the day preceding the grant date and phiers were valued using the Black-
Scholes valuation model assuming a risk free isterae of 3.58%, no dividend and a
volatility factor of 50%.

Warrant revaluation expenses represent the fairevaf the extended warrants in excess
of the fair value of the warrants being extendethatextension dates and is charged to
expense. In the first half of fiscal 2007 warraetgiring on October 21, 2006 were
extended to October 22, 2007 and warrants expiongDecember 10, 2006 were
extended three times to January 19, 2007, to Magh2007 and November 1, 2007.
These warrant revaluations resulted in an expehsg/82,874 The fair value of the
warrants were assigned using the Black-Scholesatialu model assuming risk free
interest rates of 2.0% to 4.09%, no dividend andlatility factor of 50%.

During 2007, the Company issued common sharestttersent of various liabilities,
including employee termination, interest, notes aftiter payables. The total of such
liabilities exceeded the fair value common sharesued in settlement thereof by
$155,000 which was credited to other income. Thereshwere valued using the TSX
closing price on day preceding the issuance dateerGncome also includes $420,000
primarily from insurance recoveries.

No exploration properties were written-off in 2007.
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Quarterly results (unaudited)

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

2008
September 30, June 30, March 31, December 31,
$ $ $ $
Revenue - - - -
Net loss 5,192 1,671 1,316 391
Basic and diluted
loss per share 0.01 0.01 - -
2007
September 30, June 30, March 31, December 31,
$ $ $ $
Revenue - - - -
Net loss 640 981 1,172 957
Basic and diluted
loss per share - 0.01 - -

Related party transactions

A company owned by chief executive officer, whoaiso a director, billed the
Company $78,286 in 2008 (2007 - $97,377) for thaevision of office space and
services by the Company.

Receivable from an officer and director of $15892007 $329,000) is the net

amount of non-interest-bearing note receivable @reations and advances to the
chief executive officer who is also a director loé tCompany. The note is due on or
before an extended due date of June 30, 2009 tem@llized by 6,532,000 common

shares of the Company owned by this officer anelotiar.

The Chief Financial Officer of the Company retiren February 6, 2008 at which
time he was owed $207,260. The Company enterecaingétirement agreement with
the former Chief Financial Officer under which leeeived 2,000,000 Bonus Shares
and was paid $17,648 for the difference betweeméhtesales price of the 2,000,000
Bonus Shares and $100,000. In addition he has Ipa@h $5,000 per month
beginning February, 2008 and will continue to bélpat the rate of $5,000 per
month until Pimenton is placed into commercial prettbn at which time he will
receive $7,500 per month until the net balance6d,#0 as of September 30. The
Chief Financial Officer billed $63,279 for accourgi services rendered to the
Company in 2008 (2007 - $108,694). Amounts due dilated parties include
payables to this officer of $264,000 for such seesi
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A company controlled by the Interim Chief Financ@fficer billed the Company

$20,731 for accounting services rendered in théogeznded September 30, 2008
(2007 - $nil). Amounts due to related parties idelypayables to this officer of
$9,051 for such services at September 30, 20087(280il).

During 2007, the Executive Vice-President Directdlaims and Land Management,
who is also a director of the Company, purchasedtmest in the Pimenton notes
and royalty from a non-related party. The fair ealf this note was $876,378 at
September 30, 2008 (2007 - $755,076) and intergstrnse was $48,879 in 2008
(2007 - $48,746). Amounts due to related partiesluoe $195,238 (2007 -
$146,359) for interest and $101,646 for royaltissaa September 30, 2008 (2007 -
$91,802).

Amounts due to related parties include $193,926 %itb,362 as at September 30,
2008 and 2007, respectively, for interest due tecakive-vice president-director of

exploration who is also a director of the Comparhoviolds one of the Pimenton

notes in the fair value amounts of $870,787 and®&Y as at September 30, 2008
and 2007, respectively (note 11(b)). In additiomoants due to related parties
include $101,645 and $91,802 as at September 3B 80d September 30, 2007,
respectively, for royalties due to this officer agidector who is the owner of a net

smelter royalty on the Pimenton gold mine and idela cash advance of $8,909
which was provided to the company in July 2008.

On June 20, 2007, the Company sold through a erpiaicement 26,431,515 units at
CA$0.05 per unit, with each unit consisting of @mmenmon share and one common
share purchase warrant to purchase a further consimare at CA$0.07 per share at
any time within 36 months of the date of issue. pleiceeds of the placement were
$1,174,978. The subscriber, the executive-viceigees-director, claims and land
management, who is also a director of the Companipscribed and paid for
31,360,000 units. The remaining 4,928,485 unitsewssued on the same terms on
January 15, 2008.

In April 2008, the Executive Vice-President and daior of Exploration and the

Executive Vice-President of Land and Administratibath of whom are directors of

the Company agreed to enter into an agreementge/fleurchase to the Company’s
wholly owned subsidiary, CMP, two new Komatsu fremd loaders on terms not
currently available to the Company. The purchaseepof the two Komatsu front

end loaders total $440,038 inclusive of VAT at 19f $220,019 each. The

Company has made a 25% payment against the purphaseof the equipment and

the balance was funded by these two officers amelctdirs under the 37-month
lease/purchase agreement.

In June 2008, the Executive Vice-President anddboreof Exploration, who is also
a director of the Company agreed to guarantee #yment of a 37-month lease
purchase agreement entered into by the Compangbru&ry 23, 2008 with a local
Chilean bank for the purchase of a 4x4 Land Rowera4x4 Mahindra truck for a
total purchase price of $71,624 plus VAT at 19% #ototal of $85,232. This
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director and officer of the Company has also guaexhthe payment of a 37-month
lease/purchase agreement with a local Chilean WHankthe purchase of an
ambulance for purchase price of $54,992 plus VAT%6 or a total of $65,440.

In June 2008, the Executive Vice-President anddreof Exploration, who is also
a director of the Company agreed to enter into greeanent to lease/purchase two
new 4x4 Land Rover trucks to the Company’s whollyned subsidiary, CMP, on
terms not currently available to the Company. Theclpase price of the two Land
Rovers totalled $83,998 inclusive of VAT at 19%:; $##1,999 each. The Company
has made a 20% payment against the purchase pgrittee cequipment and the
balance was funded by this officer and directoreurttie 37-month lease/purchase
agreement.

In April 2008, the Executive Vice President and dotor of Land and
Administration, who is also a director of the Comypagreed to enter into a 37-
month agreement to lease/purchase two Hino trusies for 32,000 kg and the other
for 17,000 kg, to the Company’s wholly owned sulzsijy] CMP, on terms not
currently available to the Company. The purchaseepsf the two Hino trucks total
$203,693 inclusive of VAT tax at 19%, the first 129,341 and the second for
$74,352.

Two officers and directors of the Company hold tien-controlling interest in
Catedral (note 8(a)). Under an agreement dated mNbge 27, 1996, the Company
agreed to provide or cause to provide these offieerd directors a loan of up to
$1,250,000 each or $2,500,000 in total. Such l@aesto pay their proportionate
share of development costs if a bankable feagibditidy demonstrates that the
properties can be placed into commercial productaond to fund their combined
50% share of an option payment totalling $500,0@tich was paid during 1997.

The Executive Vice President and Director of Claand Land Management and the
Executive Vice President and Director of Explomaticboth directors of the
Company, hold convertible secured debentures ofGbmpany in the aggregate
principal amount of $1,600,000. Interest expenss $&8,949 and $117,760 for the
periods ended September 30, 2008 and Septemb@0@0, respectively. Amounts
due to related parties include payables to thefieeos of $35,952 and $59,001 as at
September 30, 2008 and September 30, 2007, resgggctior interest on such
debentures. On August 13, 2007, 2,672,645 sharesiggied in payment of interest
due on the convertible subordinated debentures.sihibees were valued at $98,561,
using the TSX closing price of the preceding dag eesulted in a gain of $14,298.
On May 23, 2008, 2,394,140 shares were issuedymgat of interest on the 10%
convertible subordinated debentures. The shares wadued at $116,999, using the
TSX preceding day closing price.

On September 9, 2008, the Company sold througmérukered private placement
38,275,822 units. Three directors, two of whom as® officers of the Company

purchased 22,000,000 units under such private plece Each unit was priced at
$0.05. Each unit consists of one common share aa¢half common share purchase
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warrant. Each whole warrant is exercisable forrégopeof two years from the date of
closing at an exercise price of $0.07. Net proceefisthe placement were
$1,872,421, of which $262,270 was assigned to theamts. The fair value of the
warrants was assigned using the Black-Scholes tratuaodel, assuming a risk-free
interest rate of 2.88%, no dividend and a volatii#ctor of 80%.

Amounts due to related parties also include cashrazks to the Company of $8,909
as at June 30, 2008 from the Executive Vice Prasidad Director of Land and
Administration, who is also a director of the Comypa

On July 11, 2008, the Executive Vice President ddidector of Land and
Administration, who is also a director of the Compdought from CMP, a Ford
Ranger truck. The sale price of the truck was $13jAclusive of VAT tax at 19%,
The transaction generated a $5,326 loss to the @oynp

The Chief Executive Officer, the Executive Vice $dent and Director of
Exploration and the Executive Vice President ante®@or of Administration who
are also Directors of the Corporation hold a tofe8.2% net smelter royalty interest
on Tordillo, a 3.2% net smelter royalty interestBendurrias and a up to 2.50% net
smelter royalty interest on both the inner cirahel @ut circle of claims on La Bella.
These net smelter royalty interests were approwethb Board of Directors and
Compensation Committee of the Company in 2001. dhadividuals have not
received compensation and benefits comparable minghindustry standards since
2001.

Mineral Reserves and Mineral Resources Estimates

The Company has not complied a Mineral Reservedindral Recourses estimate of the
Pimenton mine since the mine was shut down in 2008. The Company will engage an
independent qualified person under Canadian Ing&nimM3-101 to complete a report
prior to the end of 2008.

The Company is preparing the mine for a startirtg cd 50 tons per day to be gradually
increased to 100 tons per day. The following semsitivity analysis :

PRODUCTION VARIABLES AND SENSITIVITIES FOR 100 to 2 00 TPD.

VARIABLES

Head grade gold 14.44 g/t
Head grade copper 1.26 %
Tons per day year 1 100 Tpd
Starting tones per day 100 to 200 by Septembe 200 200 Tpd
Price per Ounce Gold $750

Price per pound Copper $1.50

Exchange rate US$ 650 CH$
Plant combined recovery 90%
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Price per Ounce Gold $750

Price per pound Copper $1.50

Exchange rate US$ 650 CH$
Loan Interest rate 8.50%

Price per liter Diesel 650 CH$
Price per liter Gasoline 650 CH$

ALL IRR% ARE FOR ENTIRE INVESTMENT
100 TPD to 200tpd USING PRICES OF $750 gold and $80 Copper

Grade Sensitivity. Projects from a low of 10qg/t td.6 g/t Au head grade through plant.
Au

glt Cu% Op.Cost/Oz IRR%
10 0.5 $425 70%
12 1.0 $359 97%
14 1.2 $323 118%
16 1.4 $296 138%
Cost/Oz is cash cost per ounce at the mine

100 TPD

Recovery Sensibility. Projects from 5% to 10% lesplant Recovery for gold.

% diff. Recovery Op.Cost/Oz IRR%
-10% $343 106%
-5% $329 114%
2% $311 126%

Operating cost/Oz is cash cost per ounce at the mi

Tonnage Sensitivity at 100 to 200 tpd.

Tons per day Op.Cost/Oz IRR%
100 $557 43%
125 $459 61%
150 $407 77%
175 $370 90%
200 $316 106%
200 TPD
Price of Gold Sensitivity
Price per Ounce IRR%
$500 68%
$600 87%
$700 105%
$800 123%
$900 140%
$1,000 158%
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Price per liter of Diesel fuel

Cost per Ounce
of Au produced IRR%

CH$ 400 $301 126%

CH$ 500 $307 125%

CH$ 600 $313 124%

CH$ 700 $319 122%

CH$ 800 $325 121%

CH$ 900 $331 119%
Outlook

Results of the Rio Tinto exploration program hawitea significant value to the
Pimenton porphyry copper deposit. Anglo, a whollwned subsidiary of Anglo
American PLC, has completed drilling on a second kw1000 meters at Pimenton. The
drill hole results were positive as announced by @ompany on April 8, 2008. The
Company proceeded to enter into joint venture disicuns with Anglo but on October 30,
2008 Anglo abruptly terminated discussions duehtuncertainty in world commodity
prices.

In mid-July 2008 the company restarted the opematat Pimenton at an initial rate of 50
tons per day. The Company declared commercial ptamueffective October 1, 2008 at
91 tons per day of production.

The Company’s limestone deposits at Catedral and Noamte contain high grade
limestone which when calcined can produce lime tiha& Company’s management
believes will qualify for use by the Chilean minirigdustry. Improved economic
conditions in Argentina have increased the costeAtige lime imported by the Chilean
mining industry making Chilean lime deposits mooenpetitive.

Management believes that the values of the Pimegadosh mine, the potential porphyry

copper deposit, the Catedral, Rino and Cal Nomeditone deposits, and the Tordillo, the
Bandurrias and La Bella prospects are not curremetfiigcted in the Company’s market
capitalization and will continue its efforts to denstrate the underlying values of the
Company’s assets.

Risks factors

The Company is a minerals producing, exploratiod development company with

properties currently focused in Chile. Its miningtidties involve numerous inherent

risks. The Company is subject to various finanadglerational and political risks that
could significantly affect its profitability and epating cash flow. The Company
minimizes these risks by careful management anthpig. These risks include changes
in local laws affecting the mining industry, a deel in the price of gold or copper,

uncertainties inherent in estimating mineral reservand mineral resources and
fluctuations in the Chilean peso against the USadol The Company does not use
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financial instruments to mitigate the risks of ches in the price of gold or currency
fluctuations.

The Company operates in an international envirotmand as such, is subject to
currency risk. A significant portion of the Comganexpenditures is denominated in
Chilean pesos and Canadian dollars. A strengthesfitigese currencies could adversely
affect the Company’s costs denominated in US danllaRecently the US dollar has
strengthened significantly against both of thesgericies.The value of the Chilean
pesos to US dollar has a great effect on the Coypaperations. The Chilean pesos is
at a near all time high of CH 640. The Companyasl gor its gold, copper and silver
sales in equivalent US dollar while most of itsteasf operations are in Chilean pesos.

The Company’s business is very dependent on thee @i gold which is subject to
fluctuation by factors the Company cannot contrél.drop in the price of gold could
adversely affect the Company’s financial conditicesults of operations and cash flows.
Lower gold prices may result in: a) asset impairtmamd a write-down of the asset
carrying value, b) production cutbacks and c) dessaf operations.

The Company's Pimenton mine is highly dependentgenerating its own electrical
needs at the mine, plant and camp sites. Fuel ¢wsts risen substantially and are
expected to further increase. Higher fuel cost$ mal/e an adverse impact on profitably
of the mine.

Mine labour costs in Chile are increasing whichldadversely impact operating profits
at the Pimenton mine.

The Company operates primarily in Chile and is egobto the laws governing the

mining industry in Chile. The Chilean governmecurrently supportive of the mining

industry but changes in government regulationsuttiolg taxation, repatriation of profits,

restrictions on production, export controls, enwireental compliance, expropriation of
property and shifts in political stability of th@untry and labor unrest could adversely
affect the Company’s exploration efforts and prdotucplans.

Gold reserves are reduced by production and therefast be replaced by expanding
existing gold deposits or finding new ones. Theen be no assurance that the
Company’s development and exploration programs vedult in new gold reserves.
Mineral reserves and resources are estimates whahdiffer significantly from actual
mining results.

Due to financial constraints the Company managespterations with a limited number
of key personnel. The need to replace any of timeeiduals could adversely affect the
Company’s operations until a qualified replacemsifidund.

The Company does not currently carry insurancebtminess interruptions nor does it

carry insurance on its camp, plant, assay laborafael storage or garage facilities at
Pimenton due to financial constraints.
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The Company’s mine is located in an area that cqueréence severe winter weather
conditions which could adversely affect mining @iems. Such conditions occurred
during 2005, resulting in the shutdown of the mire.addition, the Company is subject
to environmental laws and regulations that are temnly changing and may require
expenditures that are significantly different froor current estimates.

Readers should read the risk factors which areritbestin more detail in the Company’s
Annual Information Form for the year ended Septen8ik 2007. Such factors could
materially affect future operating results of thengpany and cause actual results to differ
materially from those described in forward —lookimgformation relating to the
Company.

The Company’s continuance as a going concern igralmt upon obtaining adequate
funding, reaching profitable operations at the mprsuing joint venture partners, sale
or other disposition of all or part of its assetsadditional external funding. There is no
assurance that the steps management is takind&iduccessful and, in the event that
such resources are not available, the Company’stsaseay not be realized or its

liabilities discharged at their carrying amountsg éhese differences could be material.

DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure controls and procedures are designgdowide reasonable assurance that all
relevant information is gathered and reported tnisemanagement, including the
Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finahcfficer, on a timely basis so that
appropriate decisions can be made regarding pdisiatosure. The Company’s system of
disclosure controls and procedures includes, buthos limited to, the effective
functioning of our Audit Committee and procedurasplace to systematically identify
matters warranting consideration of disclosurelgyAudit Committee.

As at the end of the period covered by this manages discussion and analysis,
management of the Company, with the participatibthe Chief Executive Officer and
the Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effeetiess of the Company’s disclosure
controls and procedures as required by applicakdma@ian securities laws. The
evaluation included documentation review, enquiaed other procedures considered by
management to be appropriate in the circumstafi@zsed on that evaluation, the Chief
Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officeavie concluded that, as of the end of
the period covered by this management’s discussmghanalysis, the disclosure controls
and procedures were effective to provide reasonadsarance that information required
to be disclosed in the Company’s annual filings artdrim filings (as such terms are
defined under Multilateral Instrument 52-109 - @mdtion of Disclosure in Issuers’
Annual and Interim Filings) and other reports filed submitted under applicable
Canadian securities laws, is recorded, processedmarized and reported within time
periods specified by those laws and that matenébrmation is accumulated and
communicated to management of the Company, inajudive President and Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, ggpeopriate to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure.
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INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Internal control over financial reporting is a pess designed by, or under the supervision
of, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and CHréancial Officer, and effected by
the Company’s Board of Directors, management arteropersonnel, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilitynaitcial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataoce with the Company’s GAAP and
includes those policies and procedures that:

€) pertain to the maintenance of records that in me@lsle detail accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and disposgiaf the assets of the
Company;

(b) are designed to provide reasonable assurance thasattions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation ohdiah statements in
accordance with the Company’s GAAP, and that réseipd expenditures
of the Company are being made only in accordante auithorizations of
management and directors of the issuer; and

(c) are designed to provide reasonable assurance negapdevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, ugsedgsposition of the
Company’s assets that could have a material efie¢he annual financial
statements or interim financial statements;

As at the end of the period covered by this manages discussion and analysis,
management of the Company, under the supervisigheoChief Executive Officer and
the Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effeetiess of the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting as required by applicall@anadian securities laws. The
evaluation included documentation review, enquiaed other procedures considered by
management to be appropriate in the circumstafizsed on that evaluation, the Chief
Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officeavie concluded that, as of the end of
the period covered by this management’s discusarmah analysis, the internal control
over financial reporting were effective to provideasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the prepacat of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with the Company’s GAAP.

During the most recent year end there were no @simgthe Company’s internal control

over financial reporting that materially affectest, are reasonably likely to materially
affect, the Company’s internal control over finaleeporting.
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Management’s responsibility for financial reporting

The consolidated financial statements and other information in this report were prepared by
the management of South American Gold 2nd Copper Company Limited, reviewed by the
Audit Committee of the Board of Directors and approved by the Board of Directors.

Management is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements and
believes that they fairly represent the Company’s financial pesition and the results of its
operations, in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Management has included amounts in the Company’s consolidated financial statements based
on estimates, judgments and policies that it believes reasonable under the circumstances.

To discharge its responsibilities for financial reporting and for the safeguarding of assets.
management believes that it has established appropriate systems of internal accounting
control, which provide reasonable assurance, at appropriate cost, that the assets are maintained
and accounted for in accordance with its policies and that transactions are recorded accurately
on the Company’s books and records.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP were appointed as the Company’s external auditors at the

Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders, Fheir report outimes the scope of their
examination and their opinion. -

L l/‘ * W
’StepEen W. ;4 1 Peter W. Hogg”
fﬁ

Chief Executive O Chief Financial Qfficer

December 16, 2008



PRICEAATERHOUSE(QOPERS

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants

PO Box 82

Royal Trust Tower, Suite 3000
Toronto Dominion Centre
Toronto, Ontario

Canada M5K 1G8

Telephone +1 416 863 1133
Facsimile +1 416 365 8215

Auditors’ Report

To the Shareholders of
South American Gold and Copper Company Limited

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of South American Gold and Copper
Company Limited as at September 30, 2008 and 2007 and the consolidated statements of
operations, comprehensive loss and deficit and cash flows for the years then ended. These
consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.
Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation.

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Company as at September 30, 2008 and 2007 and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles.

%WW&@@M LLP

Chartered Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants
Toronto, Canada
December 16, 2008

“PricewaterhouseCoopers” refers to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an Ontario limited liability partnership, or, as the context requires, the
PricewaterhouseCoopers global network or other member firms of the network, each of which is a separate and independent legal entity.



South American Gold and Copper Company Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheets
As at September 30, 2008 and 2007

(expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars)

Assets

Current assets

Cash

Restricted cash (note 11(a))

Receivable from an officer and director (note 17)
Receivables (notes 9)

Recoverable taxes (note 7)
Product and supplies, inventory (note 5)

Receivable from an officer and director (note 17)
Mining properties, plant and equipment (note 6)
Exploration properties (note 8)

Recoverable taxes (note 7)

Total assets

Going concern and nature of operations (note 1)

Commitments (note 16)

2008 2007
$ $
15¢ 344
22 22
14 -
11C 73
2,131 -
39¢ 78
282¢ 517
15¢ 329
,606 11,874
33t 5,814
814 2,456
20,731 20,990

The accompanying notes form an integral part cdé¢lmnsolidated financial statements.
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South American Gold and Copper Company Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheetsontinued
As at September 30, 2008 and 2007

(expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars)

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Short-term lease (note 16)

Current portion of long-term debt (note 11)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Taxes payable (IVA)
Amounts due to related parties (note 17)

Long-term debt (note 11)

Long-term lease (note 16)

Long-term amounts due to related parties (noteant17)
Reclamation and remediation (note 14)
Non-controlling interest in consolidated subsidiary
Total liabilities

Shareholders’ Equity

Share capital (note 10(b))

Contributed surplus (note 13)

Convertible subordinated debentures (note 11(c))
Options (note 10(c))

Warrants (note 12)

Deficit and comprehensive loss

Total shareholders’ equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

Going concern and nature of operations (note 1)
Commitments (note 16)

Approved by the Board of Directors

(Signed) Paul J. DesLauriersChairman

2008 2007
$ $
25 -
1,56( 1,244
2,05 1,037
49( 466
801 951
3,92¢ 3,698
2,61 2,574
50 -
23€ -
1,85¢ 884
- 139
8,68( 7,295
6925¢ 63,628
258C 708
907 907
141¢€ 1,019
1,71€ 2,688
(63,825 (55,255)
12051 13,695
20731 20,990

(signed) Stephen W. Houghto©Chief Executive Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part cdé¢lmnsolidated financial statements.
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South American Gold and Copper Company Limited

“Consolidated statements of operations, compretiersss and deficit”
For the years ended September 30, 2008 and 2007

(expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars, excepsipgre amounts)

2008 2007
$ $
Expenses
Amortization 15 681
Temporary mine shutdown (notes 1 and 6) 5C 119
General and administrative 155C 1,753
Stock-based compensation (notes 10(b) and (c)) 39¢ 215
Warrant revaluation (notes 12(b) and (g)) 9C 733
Foreign exchange loss (gain) (256, 2
Interest on long-term debt 821 822
2,66¢ 4,325
Loss before undernoted (2,669 (4,325)
Other income 15 575
Write off of exploration properties (note 8) @66, -
Loss before income taxes and non-controlling intest in
consolidated subsidiary’s loss (8,709 (3,750)
Non-controlling interest in consolidated subsidiafgss 13¢ -
Loss and comprehensive loss for the year (8,570 (3,750)
Deficit - Beginning of year (55,255 (51,527)
Changes in accounting policies (note 2(0)) - 22
Deficit - End of year (63,825 (55,255)
Basic and diluted loss per share (note 3) (0.01 (0.01

Going concern and nature of operations (note 1)

Commitments (note 16)

The accompanying notes form an integral part cd¢lmnsolidated financial statements.
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South American Gold and Copper Company Limited
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended September 30, 2008 and 2007

(expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars)

2008 2007
$ $
Cash provided by (used in)
Operating activities
Loss for the year (8,570 (3,750)
Non-cash items
Amortization 15 681
Accretion of interest on long-term debt (note 11) 729 183
Foreign exchange loss (gain) (256, 2
Non-controlling interest in consolidated subsidiafgss (139 -
Taxes and penalty 64 -
Write-off of exploration properties 6,056 -
Provision and withholding 350 -
Royalties 20 -
Non-cash employee share compensation (notes 19ga(c®) 44 37
Non-cash non-employee share compensation 252
Non-cash employee options 354 178
Non-cash warrant revaluation (notes 12(b) and (g)) 90 733
(991 (1,936)
Changes in non-cash working capital relating taraipens (note 18) (602 242
(1,593 (1,694)
Investing activities
Additions to mining equipment (716, (61)
Mine development and mining properties capitaligeste 6, 8) (3,291 (429)
Receivable from an officer and director (154 (43)
Recoverable taxes - (270)
(4,161 (803)
Financing activities
Shares issued (note 10(b)) 5,27(C 3,019
Warrants exercised (note 10(b)) 447 89
Amounts due to related parties 9 -
Repayment of capital leases (267 (40)
Repayment of debt (note 11(a)) - (311)
5,55¢ 2,757
Effect of foreign exchange on cash and cash eantsheld in foreign currency 4 12
(Decrease)/Increase in cash during the year (291 272
Cash - Beginning of year 344 72
Cash - End of year 153 344

Supplemental cash flow information (note 18)
Going concern and nature of operations (note 1)

Commitments (note 16)

The accompanying notes form an integral part cdé¢lmnsolidated financial statements.
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South American Gold and Copper Company Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2008 and 2007

(all tabular amounts are expressed in thousantdsSfdollars, except number of shares and per share

1

Going concern and nature of operations

These consolidated financial statements have besraped on a going concern basis, which contengpthte
realization of assets and discharge of obligationthe normal course of business as they come Moe.
adjustments have been made to the carrying amaintse assets or liabilities, the reported revenaed
expenses or the balance sheet classifications umsdbese consolidated financial statements shohdd t
Company not be able to continue normal businessatipes.

On June 9, 2005, a major snowstorm caused damatie telectrical and air compressor equipment at the
Pimenton mine’s main portal entrance, resulting ishutdown of the mine, which remained closed iy
2008. As at September 30, 2008, the Company raparteficit of approximately $64 million and a winrd
capital deficiency of approximately $1 million, andntinues to incur significant cash outflows. tidiion, at
September 30, 2008, the Company was in breachwvefralelending covenants (Note 11) These conditions,
together with the mine shutdown, cast significamttat as to the ability of the Company to continu@éormal
business operations and, accordingly, the apprtepess of the use of accounting principles apdicab a
going concern.

The Company’s continuance as a going concern isrdigmt on reaching accommodations with its existing
lenders, obtaining adequate funding, reaching fatnit operations at the mine, pursuing joint vempartners,
sale or other disposition of all or part of its etss and/or securing additional external fundinigerg is no
assurance that the steps management is takindgp@vdluccessful and, in the event that such resoareesot
available adjustments to the carrying values ofasmets and liabilities, the reported expensedtanflalance
sheet classifications, with could be material, thayhecessary.

Nature of operations

The Company is a Canadian corporation listed onTtmnto Stock Exchange (TSX). On July 1, 2004, the
Company commenced commercial production at its Riomegold mine in Chile. The mine was closed ineJun
2005 due to snow damage. The Company was succedasfalising funds in December 2007 to restart
operations at Pimenton. The Company has declagethihe to be in commercial production effective dbetr

1, 2008. The Company’s principal exploration aedelopment activities are being focused on its Rioe
gold mine. The Company also holds interests in illoré gold / copper prospect, Bandurrias a Copper
prospect and La Bella a gold prospect and limestlapmsits. The Company also holds interests indiome
deposits.

The recoverability of the amounts shown for exgioraand development costs is dependent on thevbsg

of economically recoverable reserves, the abilitthe Company to obtain the necessary financingptaplete
the projects and on future profitable productiopaceeds from the disposition thereof.

Summary of significant accounting policies

These consolidated financial statements are predémtU.S. dollars and have been prepared in aanoed
with Canadian generally accepted accounting priesifGAAP).



South American Gold and Copper Company Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2008 and 2007

(all tabular amounts are expressed in thousantds®fdollars, except number of shares and per share

Significant accounting policies are summarizedoiews:

a)

b)

Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements includadisets, liabilities and operations of South Anaaric
Gold and Copper Company Limited (the Company or SAé&nd its subsidiaries:

South American Gold and Copper (Bermuda) Ltd. (Reta)
SAGC Cathedral Limited (Cathedral)
SAGC Management, Inc. (Management)
SAGC Pimenton Limited

Compafiia Minera Til Til Limitada (Til Til)
Companiia Minera Pimenton (Pimenton)
Compafiia Minera Vizcachas (Vizcachas)
Compafiia Minera Catedral (Catedral)
Compainiia Cal Norte (Cal Norte)
Compainia Minera Tordillo Limitada

Minera Bandurria SAGC Limitada
Compainia Minera La Bella SAGC Limitada

Foreign currency translation and transactions

The Company’s functional currency is the U.S. dolleBhe Company's foreign currency transactions,
balances and integrated operations denominatedréigh currencies are translated into the Company’s
reporting currency, U.S. dollars, as follows:

Monetary assets and liabilities are translatechatexchange rates in effect at the consolidateanbal
sheet dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities temslated at rates prevailing at the respective
transaction dates. Revenues and expenses areateahal average rates prevailing during the yedh w
the exception of amortization, which is translaa¢dhe historic rate of the related asset. Traiosiagains
and losses are reflected on the consolidated statsnof operations, deficit and comprehensive [0hs.
Company’s operations expose it to significanttihations in foreign exchange rates.

Accounts receivables

Accounts receivables include the provisional inir@cof the sale of gold concentrates. These ir®ic
are based on the Company’s weights and assaysaransubject to review and final agreement by the
customer. Changes between the prices recorded rgmmgnition of revenue and final price due to
fluctuation in price of gold results in the existerof an embedded derivative in the receivablenioaks
This embedded derivative is recorded at fair valith changes in fair value classified as a compboé
revenue.



South American Gold and Copper Company Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2008 and 2007

(all tabular amounts are expressed in thousantds®fdollars, except number of shares and per share

d)

Exploration and development costs

Acquisition costs of resource properties, togetith direct exploration and development expenses
incurred thereon, are deferred and capitalizeche accounts. Upon reaching commercial production,
these capitalized costs are transferred from eaptor properties to mining properties, plant and
equipment on the consolidated balance sheets andaraortized into operations using the units of
production method (UOP), based on proven and ptebrameral reserves and mineral resources.

The Company regularly assesses the exploratiordamdlopment costs for impairment. An impairment
occurs when at least one of the following condiiane met:

Producing properties

The carrying amount of the capitalized costs exd¢bedelated undiscounted net cash flows of proven
and probable reserves and measured resources;

Exploration properties
- exploration activities have ceased;
exploration results are not promising such thatleation will not be planned for the foreseeable
future;
lease ownership rights expire; or
sufficient funding is not expected to be availaibleomplete the exploration program; then

the carrying amount will be written down to itsrfaalue and charged to operations.
Mining properties, plant and equipment

Expenditures for facilities and equipment and exiitenes that extend the useful lives of facilitisd
equipment are capitalized at cost and are amortized their estimated useful lives, which do nateed

the estimated useful mine life, based on “proved armbable” mineral reserves and “mineral measured
resources”.

Expenditures for the continued development of tlup@rty are capitalized as incurred and are ansattiz
using the UOP method over the estimated usefubfiflie mine based upon proven and probable reserve
and mineral measured resources. These costs inblitting access ways, shaft sinking and access,
lateral development, drift development, ramps aficistructure development.

An impairment is recognized when the carrying anticafnthe mining properties, plant and equipment
exceeds the estimated net future undiscounted ftask relating to the mining properties, plant and
equipment. Such impairment loss recognized is ied as the excess of the carrying amount over the
fair value of the mining properties, plant and eqguent.



South American Gold and Copper Company Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2008 and 2007

(all tabular amounts are expressed in thousantds®fdollars, except number of shares and per share

f)

9)

h)

)

Reclamation and remediation

Asset retirement obligations are recorded in migrgperties, plant and equipment and in liabiliaé$air
value, when incurred. The liability is accreted otime through periodic charges to income. The amhou
of the liability is subject to remeasurement atheagaporting period. These obligations are assatiaith
long-lived assets for which there is a legal oliligato settle under existing or enacting lawstusés or
contracts. The related assets are amortized using®P method.

Key assumptions on which the fair value of the ast@ement obligations is based include the et
future cash flows, the timing of those cash flowsl dhe credit-adjusted risk-free rate on which the
estimated cash flows have been discounted. Thalaasset retirement obligation and closure costg ma
differ significantly, based on future changes iremgtions, cost of reclamation and closure actsjtie
regulatory requirements and the outcome of legadgedings.

Measurement uncertainty

The preparation of consolidated financial statesmémtaccordance with GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect thetegpamounts of assets and liabilities at the datae
financial statements and the reported amounts &pdnses during the reporting period. Such estimates
include useful lives for amortization, reclamatimmd environmental obligations, future income taxed
valuation allowances, future cash flows from asaatsproven and probable reserves. Actual resaoitklc
differ from these estimates.

Revenue recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when the produdbdes delivered, the price is determined, title has
transferred to the customer and the collectiorhefdale price is reasonably assured. Credits faper
and silver contained in the concentrate are recoadecopper and silver revenue.

Stock-based compensation

The Company has a share option plan, as discuss@tbie 10(c)). Compensation expense is recorded
when share options are issued to directors, offioeremployees under the Company’s share optian pla
based on the fair value of options granted. Comnatim paid by optionees on exercise of an opt®n i
recorded in share capital. Stock-based compensgii@m to outside service providers is recordethat

fair value of consideration received or consideratjiven, whichever is more readily determinablee T
fair value of options granted or consideration give determined using the Black-Scholes valuation
model, with volatility factors and risk-free ratesisting at the grant date. The share price agthet date

is considered to be equal to the closing pricehef Company’s stock on the TSX on the business day
preceding the grant date.

Income taxes

The asset and liability method is used for deteimgiincome taxes. Under this method, future incoaxe
assets and liabilities are determined, based dereifces between the financial reporting and inctare



South American Gold and Copper Company Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2008 and 2007

(all tabular amounts are expressed in thousantds®fdollars, except number of shares and per share

k)

n)

bases of assets and liabilities, and are measisied the income tax rates substantively enactetieat
consolidated balance sheet dates that are expectgply when the assets are realized or the iligsilare
settled. Net future income tax assets are offsetvddyation allowances to the extent that they are
considered not more likely than not to be realized.

Earnings and loss per shardEPS)

Basic EPS is computed by dividing the income os lfis the year by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the year, incfudomtingently issuable shares when the conditions
necessary for issuance have been met. Diluted €B&8dulated in a manner similar to basic EPS, mxce
that the weighted average number of shares outstimlincreased to include potential common shares
from the assumed exercise of options and warrédrddutive. The number of additional shares inadd

in the calculation is based on the treasury stoekhod for options and warrants on the as-if comdert
method for convertible securities.

Cash and restricted cash

Cash and restricted cash consist of cash. Theatesticash components are presented separatehlyeon t
consolidated balance sheets. The current portioastficted cash is pledged as security for pralcgmd
interest payments due within the year.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amountsgéts and liabilities and disclosure of contihgen
assets and liabilities at the date of the finanstatements and the reported amounts of revenuks an
expenses during the reporting period. Actual restduld differ from those estimates.

Significant areas where management judgement ikedpinclude asset valuations, the recoverability o
exploration and development expenditures on mimnaberties, asset retirement obligations, stodetia
compensation, and contingent liabilities. In theénagm of management, all adjustments considered
necessary for fair presentation of the resultstif@r periods presented are reflected in these fiahnc
statements.

Financial instruments.

Effective October 1, 2006, the Company adopteddueadian Institute of Chartered Accountants’ new
Handbook Section 1530, “Comprehensive Income”,i8e@&855, “Financial Instruments”, and Section
3861, “Financial Instruments” — Disclosure and Bn¢ation”. These standards were adopted on a
prospective basis but calculated retrospectively.

Comprehensive income

Section 1530 introduces new requirements for s$@nat when certain gains and losses (“other
comprehensive income” or “OCI”") must be temporagpiyesented outside of net loss. Comprehensive



South American Gold and Copper Company Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2008 and 2007

(all tabular amounts are expressed in thousantds®fdollars, except number of shares and per share

income includes both net loss and OCI. OCl is thenge in shareholders’ equity from non-owner sairce
which are not included in the calculation of nesdauntil realized. Cumulative changes in OCI are
included in Accumulated Other Comprehensive IncdA®CI”), which is presented as a new category
of shareholders’ equity on the balance sheet. Tdragany had no OCI transactions during the yearagnde
September 30, 2008, and no opening nor closinghbasafor AOCI.

Financial instruments recognition, measurement, didosure and presentation

Under section 3855, all financial instruments aessified into one of these five categories: held-f
trading, held-to-maturity investments, loans anceieables, available-for-sale financial assets thero
financial liabilities. All financial instruments drderivatives are measured on the balance sheetttsir
value upon initial recognition. Subsequent measergndepends on the initial classification of the
instrument. Held-for-trading financial assets areasured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognized in net earnings (loss). Available-fdedmancial instruments are measured at fair valith
changes in fair value recorded in OCI until thetrim®ient is derecognised or impaired. Loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments and ofimancial liabilities are measured at amortizedtcall
derivative instruments, including embedded densj are recorded in the balance sheet at fairevalu
unless they qualify for the normal sales and pselaxemption. Changes in the fair value of devieat
that are not exempt are recorded in net loss.

Upon adoption of these standards, the Company bagrthted its cash as held-for-trading, which is
measured at fair value. Receivables are desigredetbans and receivables, which are measured at
amortized cost. Accounts payable and accrued iligisilare designated as other liabilities, whick ar
measured at amortized cost. At September 30, 2008 ompany had neither available-for-sale nor-held
to-maturity financial instruments.

The Company evaluated the impact of Section 385%tiSeptember 30, 2007 consolidated financial
statements and recorded a transition adjustmenpéaing deficit in the amount of $22,000 to refldet
impact of adopting the effective interest rate rodth

Section 3861 identifies and details informatiobéodisclosed in the financial statements.

Hedging

This standard specifies the circumstances undechnvhédge accounting is permissible and how hedge
accounting may be performed. The Company curreligs not hold any financial instruments designated
for hedge accounting.

Capital disclosures and financial instruments — Dislosures and presentation

On December 1, 2006, the CICA issued three newwsting standards: Capital Disclosures (Handbook
Section 1535), Financial Instruments — DisclosiikHendbook Section 3862), and Financial Instruments

Presentation (Handbook Section 3863). These nendatds became effective for the Company on
October 1, 2007.
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South American Gold and Copper Company Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2008 and 2007

(all tabular amounts are expressed in thousantds®fdollars, except number of shares and per share

p)

Capital disclosures

Handbook Section 1535 specifies the disclosurd)add( entity’s objectives, policies and processas f
managing capital; (ii) quantitative data about wihat entity regards as capital; (iii) whether thétg has
complied with any capital requirements; and (ivjtihas not complied, the consequences of such non-
compliance. The Company has included disclosuresmenended by the new Handbook section in note
20 to these consolidated financial statements.

Financial instruments

Handbook Sections 3862 and 3863 replace Handbocko8e3861, Financial Instruments — Disclosure
and Presentation, revising and enhancing its disctorequirements, and carrying forward unchantged i
presentation requirements. These new sections piaceased emphasis on disclosures about the nature
and extent of risk arising from financial instrurterand how the entity manages those risks. The
Company has included disclosures recommended bynéle Handbook section in note 19 to these
consolidated financial statements.

New pronouncements not adopted
Goodwill and intangible assets

The Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountanisedshe new Handbook Section 3064, “Goodwill and
Intangible Assets”, which will replace Section 308&oodwill and Other Intangible Assets”. The new
standard establishes revised standards for theymémm, measurement, presentation and disclosfire o
goodwill and intangible assets. The new standamb gbrovides guidance for the treatment of
preproduction and start-up costs and requiresthtiege costs be expensed as incurred. The new sfanda
applies to annual and interim financial statemeelating to fiscal years beginning on or after @etol,
2008. Management is currently assessing the imgfabtese new accounting standards on its conselidat
financial statements.

International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS")

In 2006, the Canadian Accounting Standards Boafd$B") published a new strategic plan that will
significantly affect financial reporting requiremerfor Canadian companies. The AcSB strategic plan
outlines the convergence of Canadian GAAP with IER&r an expected five year transitional period. In
February 2008 the AsSB announced that 2011 ishhegeover date for publicly-listed companies to use
IFRS, replacing Canada’s own GAAP. The date igriterim and annual financial statements relating to
fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 20tk transition date of January 1, 2011 will reguhre
restatement for comparative purposes of amountstegpby the Company for the year ended September,
2011. While the Company has begun assessing thgtiadoof IFRS for 2011, the financial reporting
impact of the transition to IFRS cannot be reashnedtimated at this time.
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Inventory

In June 2007, a replacement section for inventoBestion 3031 “Inventories” was issued and pravide
guidance on the determination of cost and its sylEs# recognition as an expense, including anyewrit
down to net realizable value. It also provides gaitk on the cost formulas that are used to asegs to
inventories and eliminates the use of the “lasffiist-out” method of accounting and is effectivar the

fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2008.

3 Basic and diluted loss per share

2008 2007
$ $
Loss for the year 8,57( 3,750
Weighted average number of shares outstandinge bas 665,640,98 506,231,152
Basic and diluted loss per share 0.01 0.01

The effect of convertible debentures, notes, ogtemd warrants is not included in computing thetdd per
share amounts, since in the context of reporteskkfor the years, such effect would be anti-diuti

4 Income taxes

The Company’s future income tax liability has beattulated as follows:

2008 2007
$ $
Loss before income taxes and non-controlling irsteire
consolidated subsidiary’s loss 8,70¢ 3,750
Income tax recovery at Canadian federal and prialinc
statutory rates (2008 - 34.16%; 2007 - 36.12%) 2,97t 1,355
Effect of expenses incurred in non-taxing jurisdics (40) (44)
Effect of difference in regional income taxes coneglawith
Canadian rates (214) (278)
Expenses not deductible for income tax purposes (1,023 (363)
Expenses deductible for income tax purposes, biufondwook
purposes (425) 85
Effect of losses incurred for book purposes, theine tax
benefits of which have not been recognized in these
consolidated financial statements (1,273 (755)

(Recovery of) provision for future income taxes -
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The Company’s net future income tax asset (lighikis at September 30 is summarized as follows:

2008 2007
$ $
Mining properties, plant and equipment and expionat
properties 4,28 3,380
Non-capital losses carried forward and other fuagssets 3,25¢ 4,446
7,54( 7,826
Valuation allowance (7,540 (7,826)

Net future income tax liability - -

As at September 30, 2008, the Company and its diabigis had available Canadian income tax lossycarr
forwards of approximately $4.0 million that expbretween 2008 and 2028, Chilean tax loss carry-ftsvaf
approximately $9.5 million that can be carried fard indefinitely and U.S. tax loss carry-forwards o
approximately $1.0 million that can be carried fard/20 years.

The Company has recorded a valuation allowancearamount of $7,540,000 as at September 30, 2@UF (2
- $7,826,000) because management currently belibaeshe future income tax assets are not moedylithan
not to be realized in the allowable loss carry-famvperiods.

Realization of future income tax assets is dependemany factors, including the ability of the Queny to
generate sufficient taxable income within the alible loss carry-forward periods in order to useavalable
income tax loss carry-forwards.

The country of Bermuda currently imposes no incawithholding or capital gains taxes. In the evdsait tsuch
taxes are enacted, the Company is exempt fromntpesition of Bermudian taxes until 2016.

5 Product and supplies inventory

2008 2007
Concentrate inventory 209 -
Supplies inventory 187 78
396 78
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6 Mining properties, plant and equipment

2008
Estimated Accumulated
useful life Cost amortization Net
$ $ $
Mining properties UOP 3,96¢ 740 3,229
Buildings and equipment 1-10 years 7,60¢ 5,07¢ 2,531
Mine development UuoP 12,95¢ 2,11: 10,843
24,53( 7,927 16,603
2007
Estimated Accumulated
useful life Cost amortization Net
$ $ $
Mining properties UoOP 3,96¢ 740 3,229
Buildings and equipment 1-10 years 6,23¢ 4,63¢ 1,600
Mine development UOP 8,40z 1,351 7,045
18,60¢ 6,73¢ 11,874

The cost of assets under capital leases and ldtedeaccumulated amortization amounted to $643i905
2008 (2007 - $nil) and $26,586 in 2008 (2007 -)$ndspectively.

On July 1, 2004, the Pimenton gold mine commenemdneercial production and costs accumulated under

exploration properties for the mine were transfiérr@ mining properties, plant and equipment. OneJ8n
2005, the mine closed due to a major snowstorme (bptTemporary mine shutdown expenses were $507000
2008 (2007 - $119,000). In mid-July 2008 the Comypastarted operations at Pimenton. The PimentareMi
was declared to be in commercial production at BEtd, 2008. Effective October 1, 2008 gold, copgredt
silver sales and operating costs will be repontetthé statement of operations. Prior to OctobedB82fbld sales
and operating costs have been capitalized for iimhaccounting purposes. For the year ended Série80,
2008 the Company capitalized revenue of $329,44éagmine development expenditures.

Total amount capitalized for the year ended Sepeer@b, 2008 was $5,921,000. (2007 - $256,000)

7 Recoverable taxes

Recoverable taxes in the amount of $2,131,000 (200il) of the total of $2,945,000 at September Z1)8
(2007- $2,456,000) have been classified as a $hort-asset in the consolidated balance sheets.vBeatie
taxes in the amount of $344,000 as at Septembe2(®®B (2007 - $372,000) represent IVA taxes paidhen
fixed assets, which can be recovered upon reqoestet Chilean tax authorities. The Company filedhsu
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request, which has been denied by the Chileanutpodties on technical grounds. The Company isafipg
this decision and has reclassified IVA taxes onftked assets as a long-term asset. IVA relatingtteer
expenditures is recoverable either by means oéditcagainst tax due upon domestic sales of thepaomor
by requesting reimbursement of IVA borne when etipgror export commitments are proven. Therefdne, t
recoverability of these amounts is dependent upenability of the Company to develop and deriveulfet

production from its Pimenton gold mine.

8 Exploration properties

Pimenton
Catedral Cal Norte Porphyry Chachas Tordillo Bandurrias La Bella Other
(@) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (9) (h) Total
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Mining properties
Balance as at September 30, 2006 1,092 54 - 77 18 - - 10 1,251
Additional costs capitalized - - - - 94 - - - 94
Writedowns - - - - - - - - -
Balance as at September 30, 2007 1,092 54 - 77 112 - - 10 1,34¢
Additional costs capitalized - - - - 75 112 96 - 283
Writedowns (1,092 (54) - (77) - (60) - (10) (1,293)
Balance as at September 30, 2008 - - - - 187 52 96 - 335
Exploration costs
Balance as at September 30, 2006 2,306 1,296 411 54 - - - 67 4,13¢
Additional costs capitalized 41 113 - 41 - 131 - 9 335
Writedowns - - - - - - - - -
Balance as at September 30, 2007 2,347 1,409 411 95 - 131 - 76 4,46¢
Additional costs capitalized 53 24 - - - 23 31 - 131
Reclasification - 47 - - - - - 47) -
Writedowns (2,400 (1,480) (411) (95) - (154) (31) (29) (4,600
Balance as at September 30, 2008 - - - - - - - - 0
Summary - 2008
Mining properties - - - - 187 52 96 - 335
Exploration costs - - - - - - - - -
Total as at September 30, 2008 - - - 187 52 96 - 335
Summary - 2007
Mining properties 1,092 54 - 77 112 - - 10 1,34¢
Exploration costs 2,347 1,409 411 95 - 131 - 76 4,46¢
Total as at September 30, 2007 3,439 1,463 411 172 112 131 - 86 5,81«

During the year end September 30, 2008 the Compaiate off exploration and mining properties totglin
$1,030,000. The Company considered that exploratsnlts as not promising, and therefore wroteitsff
exploration costs

Additionally, the Company wrote down its CatedratiRproject in the amount of $3,492,000 and its Iaite
project in the amount of $1,534,000.

In 2008 the total amount of these write downs v&&©56,000.
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a)

b)

d)

Catedral

The Company owns 50.1% of the Catedral prospeoutir its subsidiaries Catedral and CM Catedral,
which encompasses the Catedral and Rino limestepesits. The deposits are hosted by the Los Valdes
Formation, which stretches along a significantatise of the high Cordillera. Two officers and dices

hold the remaining non-controlling interest in Gitd (note 17).

On another portion of the concession, an agreemasisigned in which CM Catedral must pay the owner
of the concession $150,000 on January 25, 2010o0Wher has the option to receive payment in shafres
the Company at a discount of 15% from the then etapkice per share, but not at a price less than
CA$0.20 per share. The Company can prepay the @a8@t any time.

The Company wrote off the balance of $3,492,00@iming properties and explorations costs on Catedra
as the properties had been on care and maintef@oere than three years.

Cal Norte

In July 1999, the Company entered into a formakegrent with Compafiia Minera Quelon (Quelon) for
the formation of Cal Norte. Under the agreemerg, @ompany acquired a 60% interest in Cal Norte,
consisting principally of exploration propertieglued at $332,000. This acquisition was fundedhey t
non-controlling interest. Other assets and lidbgiof Cal Norte were insignificant. Quelon contitéd its
mining equipment, related mine facilities and litoe® deposits. The Quelon mining properties are
located north of Santiago, Chile. The Company hlaesea to fund up to $1,800,000 to Cal Norte as its
contribution toward a project to develop a manufacy operation (note 16).

As at September 30, 2008, the Company had contdbifl,534,000 (2007 - $1,463,000) to finance a
bankable feasibility study on the project and fovieonmental permitting and further mine developimen
on the project. Although the Company has incurnéfficient explorations expenditures to maintain the
Property in good standing until September 30, 2@08rote off the carrying value of $1,534,000 dhgyi
the current year as the property had been on carenaintenances for more than three years.

Pimenton - Porphyry

The Company has incurred sufficient explorationpeexlitures to maintain the Pimenton porphyry in
good standing. As of September 30, 2008, it wrdtéhe carrying value of $411,000 as the exploratio
results were not promising.

Chachas

The Company has taken the decision not to contiitlethis project. Therefore the Company wrote off
the balance of $172,000 in mining properties arplagations costs.
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e)

f)

9)

h)

Tordillo
Tordillo was acquired by the Company in 2006.
Bandurrias

Bandurrias was acquired in August, 2007 by the @amg by way of an option agreement for the
property. Under the terms of the option agreem®3®,000 was paid on signing, $70,000 is due in six
months, followed by four payments of $100,000 ew@xrymonths, with a final payment at 36 months of
$600,000. The balance of the $6,500,000 price @6000 will be paid in the form of a 5% Net Sreelt
Royalty. In April, 2008 the Company did not rends @ption agreement on Bandurrias on certain claims
and wrote off $214,000 relating to this option @&gnent. During the year the Company acquired certain
other claims in surrounding areas where the Compasya 100% interest.

La Bella

The Company has signed an option agreement toa@a00% interest on this project on December 7,
2007.

Under the terms of the Option Agreement (innerejrthe Company has paid $30,000 and $70,000 is due
in December 2008, $200,000 in December 2009, $800i0 December 2010, $900,000 in December
2011 and $1,000,000 in December 2012. The Compalhypay a 2 2% Net Smelter Royalty to the
optionee from production thereafter.

On the outer circle the Company has an obligatmrpay $100,000 in December 2008, 100,000 in
December 2009, $500,000 in December 2010, $700j9@ecember 2011, $1,000,000 in December
2012, $ 2,600,000 in December 2013. The Compariyay a 2 ¥2 % Net Smelter Royalty to the optionee
of the inner circle from production thereafter.

In addition on the inner and outer circle the Comyplas a combined minimum exploration obligation of
$50,000 in year one, $250,000 in year two and $0@0in year three.

The Company has taken the decision to expensearceftiis explorations costs amounting to $31,000.
Other

During the years ended September 30, 2008 and 2@0dther exploration costs and mining properties
were expensed.
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9 Receivables

Receivables consist of:

Accounts receivable
Other Sundry receivables

10 Share capital

a) Authorized capital

2008 2007
$ $
96 -
14 73
110 73

The authorized capital of the Company consistsafrdimited number of common shares, with no par

value.

b) Issued and outstanding

Outstanding - Beginning of year
Warrants exercised (i)
Private placement (ii)
Private placement (iii)
Share issuance (iv)
Share issuance (v)
Warrants exercised (Vi)
Warrants exercised (vii)
Share issuance (viii)
Share issuance (ix)
Private placement (x)

Outstanding - End of year

2008
Number of Amount
shares $
570,842,90 63,628
9,936,091 680
92,375,000 2,625
4,928,48! 143
5,340,77 236
2,000,001 90
735,500 42
700,000 39
1,000,001 45
2,394,141 117
38,275,822 1,610
728,528,719 69,255
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2007
Number of Amount
shares $
Outstanding - Beginning of year 465,297,13 60,321
Share issuance (xi) 2,000,001 71
Private placement (xii) 2,000,00t 87
Share issuance (xiii) 240,000 9
Warrants exercised (xiv) 2,190,03 138
Private placement (xv) 34,156,000 740
Private placement (xvi) 20,000,000 564
Share issuance (xvii) 3,266,58: 118
Private placement (xviii) 2,800,00i 75
Share issuance (xix) 6,501,21: 294
Private placement (xx) 26,431,515 991
Share issuance (xxi) 1,000,001 37
Share issuance (xxii) 2,672,64! 99
Share issuance (xxiii) 687,777 25
Share issuance (xxiv) 1,600,001 59
Outstanding - End of year 570,842,90 63,628

i) On October 31, 2007 participants in the Decembe2003 private placement exercised 9,936,090
warrants at a price of CA$0.04 per share for netgeds of $390,446. The fair value of $288,703
assigned to these warrants was transferred to shpi&l.

ii) On December 17, 2007, the Company sold throughivatpr placement 92,375,000 units at
CA$0.0416 per unit, each unit consisting of one iemm share and one half of one common share
purchase warrant to purchase a further common stta&$0.06 per share at any time within two
years of the date of issue. In connection with fiivate placement, the Company also issued
5,616,937 broker warrants, each exercisable at @8H0er share, expiring within two years of the
date of issue. Net proceeds of the placement w&29%,626, of which $697,075 was assigned to
the warrants and $84,772 was assigned to the breeants using the Black-Scholes valuation
model, assuming a risk-free interest rate of 4.758ulividend and a volatility factor of 80%.

iii) On June 20, 2007, the Company sold through aterplacement 26,431,515 units at CA$0.05 per
unit, consisting of one common share and one conshare purchase warrant to purchase a further
common share at CA$0.07 per share at any timem@Bimonths of the date of issue. Net proceeds
of the placement were $1,174,978, of which $184\9@6 assigned to the warrants. The fair value
of the warrants was assigned using the Black-Sshakiation model assuming a risk-free interest
rate of 3.23%, no dividend and a volatility factafr 50%. On January 15, 2008, the remaining
4,928,485 units were issued on the same terms @geabNet proceeds of the placement were
$220,022, of which $77,818 was assigned to theamgsr The fair value of the warrants was
assigned using the Black-Scholes valuation mettssdraing a risk-free interest rate of 2.8%, no
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vi)

vii)

viii)

Xi)

xii)

xiii)

dividend and a volatility factor of 80%. The suliger, an officer and director of the Company,
subscribed and paid for all of 31,360,000 unitthidf private placement.

On January 15, 2008, the Company issued 5,3400mM&on shares in settlement of two employee
wage liabilities of $236,071. The shares were edlat $236,071, using the TSX closing price on
January 15, 2008 resulting in no gain or loss.

On February 1, 2008, the Company entered into ieeme¢nt agreement with the former Chief
Financial Officer under which he received 2,000,@&¥hus Shares. The shares were valued at
$90,270, using the TSX closing price on January2808.

In March 2008, broker participants in the Febru22y 2007 private placement exercised 735,500
broker warrants at a price of CA$0.04 per sharenfetr proceeds of $29,420. The fair value of
$12,087 assigned to these warrants was transferigthre capital.

In April 2008, broker participants in the Febru@¥, 2007 private placement exercised 700,000
broker warrants at a price of CA$0.04 per sharenftr proceeds of $27,635. The fair value of
$11,504 assigned to these warrants was transferigthre capital.

On April 29, 2008 an officer and director receii600,000 bonus shares valued at $44,474 using
the TSX closing price of CA $0.045 per share.

On May 23, 2008, 2,394,140 shares were issueddmfficers (Executive-Vice-President, Claims
and Land Management and Executive-Vice-Presidedt@inector of Exploration) who are also
Directors, in payment of interest due to them oy6@Q,000 of convertible subordinated debentures.
The shares were valued at $116,999 using the T8&epding day closing price.

On September 9, 2008, the Company sold througmdraker private placement 38,275,822 Units.
Three Directors, two of whom are also officers lif Company purchased 22,000,000 Units of the
private placement. Each Unit was priced at $0.@&hEUnit consists of one common share and one-
half warrant. Each whole warrant is exercisableafgeriod of two years from the date of closing at
an exercise price of $0.07. Net proceeds of thegpteent were $1,872,421, of which $ 262,270 was
assigned to the warrants. The fair value of theravas was assigned using the Black —Scholes
valuation model, assuming a risk-free interest cdit2.88%, no dividend and a volatility factor of
80%.

On November 7, 2006, the Company issued 2,000,000mon shares in settlement of an employee
termination liability of $121,452. The shares weadued at $70,834, using the TSX closing price
on November 6, 2006, resulting in a gain of $50,&&lited to other income.

On November 17, 2006, the Company sold throughveatgr placement 2,000,000 common shares
at CA$0.05 per share for net proceeds of $87,596.

On January 2, 2007, the Company issued 240,000 conghares for consulting services. These
shares were valued at $9,267 using the TSX clqsiicg on January 2, 2007.
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Xiv) On January 18, 2007 participants in the October2PD4 private placement exercised 2,190,039
warrants at a price of CA$0.04 per share for neteeds of $74,561. The fair value of $63,633

assigned to these warrants was transferred to shpital.

Xv)  On February 23, 2007, the Company sold throughvater placement 34,156,000 units at CA$0.04
per unit, consisting of one common share and omergan share purchase warrant to purchase a
further common share at CA$0.06 per share at ang Within 24 months of the date of issue. In
connection with the private placement the Compdsy msued 2,390,000 broker units, exercisable
at CA$0.04 per unit, at any time within 24 montfishe date of issue. Each broker warrant consists
of one common share and one common share purctaasgnivto purchase a further common share
at CA$0.06 per share at any time within 24 monththe private placement date. Net proceeds of
the placement were $979,994, of which $200,482 agatgned to the warrants and $39,294 to the
broker units. The fair value of the warrants wasigaged using the Black-Scholes valuation model,

assuming a risk-free interest rate of 4.12%, nadivd and a volatility factor of 50%.

xvi) On March 6 and March 27, 2007, the Company sololtin a private placement 20,000,000 units at
CA$0.04 per unit, consisting of one common sham @ame common share purchase warrant to
purchase a further common share at CA$0.06 pee sftaany time within 24 months of the date of
issue. Net proceeds of the placement were $67&83&sting of a $594,048 reduction of amounts
due to officers and directors of the Company antil @88 cash, of which $115,052 was assigned to
the warrants. The fair value of the warrants wasgagd using the Black-Scholes valuation model

assuming a risk-free interest rate of 3.90%, naldivd and a volatility factor of 50%.

xvii) The Company entered into agreements with a firpréeide financial and management consulting
services. The agreements provide that the Compssueicommon shares on a monthly basis as
compensation for such services. As of March 31728(266,588 common shares were due for such
services and are shown as outstanding. These shames valued at $117,937 using the TSX

monthly closing prices during the year.

xviii) On April 7, 2007, the Company sold through a pevplacement 2,800,000 units at CA$0.04 per
unit, consisting of one common share and one conshare purchase warrant to purchase a further
common share at CA$0.06 per share at any timem@tiimonths of the date of issue. Net proceeds
of the placement were $96,841, of which $21,647 ags$gned to the warrants. The fair value of the
warrants was assigned using the Black-Scholes tiatumodel, assuming a risk-free interest rate of

2.88%, no dividend and a volatility factor of 50%.

xixX) On May 15 and May 31, 2007, the Company terminaggéements with a firm providing financial
and management consulting services. It was agesdte 9,767,000 common shares in settlement
of all amounts due. As of March 31, 2007, 3,266,68&mon shares were due for such services and
were shown as outstanding. These shares were vatugtll 7,937 using the TSX monthly closing
prices during the period. The balance of 6,501 @i®mon shares was valued at $294,029, using

the TSX closing prices on May 15 and May 31, 2007.

xx)  On June 20, 2007, the Company sold through a pripietcement 26,431,515 units at CA$0.05 per
unit, consisting of one common share and one conshare purchase warrant to purchase a further
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XXi)

XXii)

XXiii)

XXiV)

common share at CA$0.07 per share at any timem@&imonths of the date of issue. Net proceeds
of the placement were $1,174,978, of which $184\0@6 assigned to the warrants. The fair value
of the warrants was assigned using the Black-Seh@&iation model assuming a risk-free interest
rate of 3.23%, no dividend and a volatility factafr 50%. The remaining 4,928,485 units were

issued on the same terms as above on January @8, 28et proceeds of the placement were
$220,022, of which $77,818 was assigned to theam&gr The fair value of the warrants was

assigned using the Black-Scholes valuation mettssdraing a risk-free interest rate of 2.8%, no
dividend and a volatility factor of 80%. The suliiger, an officer and director of the Company,

subscribed and paid for all of 31,360,000 unitthidf private placement.

On June 28, 2007, the board of directors approkedidsuance of 1,000,000 bonus shares to an
officer (the president) and director. The sharesewalued at $37,348, using the TSX closing price
on the preceding day and expensed as stock-basgukosation.

On August 13, 2007, 2,672,645 shares were issutubtofficers (executive-vice-president, claims
and land management and executive-vice-presidedt director of exploration) who are also
directors, in payment of interest due to them an1f% convertible subordinated debentures. The
shares were valued at $98,561, using the TSX dgsiite of the preceding date and resulted in a
gain of $14,298.

On August 13, 2007, 687,777 shares were issuedaeendors in settlement of amounts due them.
The shares were valued at $25,364, using the T&sfng price of the preceding date and resulted
in a gain of $7,247.

On August 13, 2007, 1,600,000 shares were issumebtwendors in settlement of amounts due to
them. The shares were valued at $59,004, using3eclosing price of the preceding date and
resulted in a gain of $83,189.

Share option plan

The Company has a share option plan (the Plan)allgefrom time to time at the discretion of the Bba

of Directors, share options are granted to diractofficers, employees and certain consultants. The
maximum number of common shares issuable underPtha is 150,000,000 common shares and
40,000,000 common shares issuable under the sbates Iplan, within the Plan to eligible participants
The Board of Directors determines the vesting pkaibits discretion.

A summary of the Company’s Plan for the years er8kgatember 30 is as follows:
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2008
Weighted
Number of average
options exercise price
$ CAS$
Outstanding - Beginning of year 1,01¢ 61,395,000 0.074
Changes during the year
Granted (i) 399 29,289,538 0.045
Expired - (735,000) 0.056
Outstanding - End of year 1,41¢ 89,949,538 0.065
Exercisable - End of year 73,510,000
2007
Weighted
Number of average
options exercise price
$ CA$
Outstanding - Beginning of year 842 58,895,000 .080
Changes during the year
Granted (ii) 177 10,000,000 0.040
Expired - (7,500,000) 0.069
Outstanding - End of year 1,01¢ 61,395,000 0.074
Exercisable - End of year 61,095,000
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i)

i)

Also, the Company issued on March 13, 2008 25,@@0@ommon Stock Options exercisable at CA.$
0.045 per share for a period of four years fromdaie of issuance, which were issued to the Preside
of the Company (10,000,000 options) and three néecibrs and two Serving Directors who are not
officers of the Company (15,000,000 options). Thegions were fair valued at $312,672, using the
Black —Scholes valuation model, assuming a risés-fate of 3.6%, no dividend, and volatility factor
of 80%, and a vesting period between three andyfears. This options were expensed as stock-based
compensation, In addition, seven employees whaonateofficers of the Company were awarded a
total of 1,950,000 common stock options havingva fiears life with immediate vesting at a price of
CA.$0.045 per share. These options were fair valtedb7,595 using the Black —Scholes valuation
model, assuming a risks-free rate of 3.6%, no dnitj and volatility factor of 80% and expensed as
stock-based compensation. On April 30, 2008, 2580 Common Stock Options were granted to a
new director of the Company at an exercise pric€A$0.05 per share, exercisable for a period of
four years from the date of issuance, and a vest@migpd of three years. The options were valueal at
fair value at $27,792, using the Black —Scholesatibn model, assuming a risk- free rate of 3.04%.

On June 28, 2007, the President of the Compaayg granted 10,000,000 options, exercisable at
CA$0.04 per share and expiring on June 28, 2018sd loptions were fair valued at $177,000, using
the Black-Scholes valuation model, assuming afris&-rate of 3.58%, no dividend, and a volatility
factor of 50% and expensed as stock-based compmnsall these options vested immediately.

The Company recognized the total stock based cosagien of $442,533 (2007 - $177,000) of which
$44,314 (2007 — nil) charged to mine development 398,259 charged to stock based
compensation.

Options outstanding as at September 30 are asvillo

2008
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number of remaining exercise Options
Exercise price options contractual life price exercisable
(years) CAS$
0.090 8,000,000 1.0 0.090 8,000,000
0.070 2,000,000 14 0.070 2,000,000
0.070 13,695,714 15 0.070 13,695,714
0.065 5,714,286 2.4 0.065 5,714,286
0.090 21,250,000 4.5 0.090 20,950,000
0.040 10,000,000 4.7 0.040 10,000,000
0.045 25,000,000 35 0.045 10,600,000
0.050 2,339,538 3.5 0.050 600,000
0.045 1,950,000 4.5 0.045 1,950,000
89,949,538 3.25 0.065 73,510,000
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2007
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number of remaining exercise Options
Exercise price options contractual life price exercisable
$ (years) CAS$
0.045 275,000 0.9 0.045 275,000
0.060 460,000 0.9 0.060 460,000
0.090 8,000,000 2.0 0.090 8,000,000
0.070 2,000,000 2.4 0.070 2,000,000
0.070 13,695,714 25 0.070 13,695,714
0.065 5,714,286 3.4 0.065 5,714,286
0.090 21,250,000 55 0.090 20,950,000
0.040 10,000,000 5.7 0.040 10,000,000
61,395,000 4.1 0.074 61,095,000
11 Long-term debt
2008 2007
Description terest rate Principal Principal
$ $
OPIC note, due on June 30, 2009 (a) 8.27% 677 705
OPIC note, due on June 30, 2009 (a) 8.39% 908 921
Pimenton note, due on December 15, 2009 (b) 5% under
certain
conditions 1,689 1,50¢
Convertible secured debentures, due March 31, 2913 933 828
Loan origination expense (37) (142)
4,170 3,81¢
Less: Current portion 1,560 1,244
Long-term debt 2,610 2,574

Interest paid by the Company was $64,856 and $37#@3he years ended September 30, 2008 and 2007,
respectively.

The maturities of long-term debt and related irgepayments are as follows:
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Long-term

debt

$

Fiscal year ended September 30,

2009 1,56C
2010 1,94¢

2011 -

2012 -
2013 and thereafter 1,60(
5,104

Less: Future accretion 934
4,17(

CM Pimenton, a subsidiary of the Company entéréd a loan agreement with Overseas Private
Investment Corporation (OPIC) dated December 29320 he Company was required to establish a
restricted cash account. The balance of this otstltiaccount as at September 30, 2008 and 2007 was
$22,000.

The loan is secured by a pledge and security istténeall the shares of SAGC Pimenton Limited and a
mortgage and pledge of all the shares of Pimentamed by SAGC Pimenton Limited and Til Til. In
addition, an officer and director of the Companys hpersonally guaranteed 26% of all principal and
interest due and all fees and costs due underotire dgreement until the project reaches financidl a
operational completion, as defined in the loan agrent.

In connection with the OPIC financing, the Pimentarieholders have agreed to defer the repayment of
their note until one year subsequent to the fiaphyment of the OPIC note.

On January 30, 2004, Pimenton drew down $1,20000@0e OPIC commitment at an annual interest rate
of 8.27%. Interest payments are due semi-annualljume 15 and December 15, commencing on June 15,
2004. Semi-annual principal payments of $133,338 also due on June 15 and December 15,
commencing on December 15, 2004.

During May 2004, Pimenton reached physical comptetind on May 25, 2004, Pimenton drew down the
second tranche of $1,600,000 of the OPIC commitna¢rén annual interest rate of 8.39%. Interest
payments are due semi-annually on June 15 and Oereb®, commencing on June 15, 2004. Semi-
annual principal payments of $177,777 are also alueJune 15 and December 15, commencing on
December 15, 2004.

The OPIC notes are carried at amortized cost ubimgffective interest method.
Loan origination expenses of $37,000 as at Septe8the2008 (2007 - $142,000) are primarily assedat
with the OPIC loan. Prior to the implementation $éiction 3855 these expenses were deferred and

amortized over the life of the loan. Effective Gmto 1, 2006, these expenses were added to thencarry
amount of debt and amortized using the effectiterast rate method.
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b)

The loan contains financial and operating covenants

Due to events at the mine (notes 1 and 6), Pimesdeised OPIC that it believes Pimenton will notiftbe
compliance with the financial and operating covaador the calendar quarters through and until Bhe
20009.

As of September 30, 2007, OPIC has granted Pimemaivers with respect to the financial and operatin
events of default discussed above until June 309.20

In 1996, Pimenton, a wholly owned subsidiarytted Company, purchased from Messrs. Thomson (an
executive-vice-president-director of exploratiord alirector of the Company) and Bernstein an adufitio
44% interest in Pimenton’s principal gold prospéutreasing its interest to 100%, and two concessio
adjoining this prospect (note 6). On the purch&2¢)00,000 was paid, and the payment of the balahce
the purchase of a further $2,000,000 was payalflmddlay 29, 1995 for consideration and, subject to
certain conditions. The noteholders agreed to eixtee due date from May 28, 1998 to December 31,
2000.

On December 29, 2003, in connection with the isseanf the OPIC loan agreement, the Pimenton
noteholders agreed to an additional extension efdile dates of the Pimenton notes until one ydar af
the OPIC notes are repaid. These notes were relatu&976,187. The fair value of these notes was
determined using a quarterly risk rate of returrb®. This refinancing resulted in a gain of $548,80
which was recognized in fiscal 2004.

The notes were accreted to $1,688,949 as at Septe30p2008 (2007 - $1,505,292), with $183,656 dpein
charged to interest expense in 2008 (2007 - $82, B30December 15, 2009, the carrying amount of the
notes will have been accreted to $1,943,561, tbe danount due on maturity.

Interest on the Pimenton note is 5% per annum,lpeyanly at the end of any 90-day consecutive plerio
and only for that period in which the price of gtdddes above US$300 per ounce.

On April 13, 2006, the Company completed a pevplacement of $1,600,000 of convertible secured
debentures with a seven-year maturity and beanitegdst at LIBOR plus 2% to two officers (executive
vice-president-director of exploration and exeariwce-president-director, claims and land managgme
and directors of the Company (note 17). The Comgaad/ the option to pay the first year’s interest in
shares of the Company’s common stock at a 20% prami

For accounting purposes, the convertible securdé@rdares have a liability component and an equity
component, which are separately presented in theotidated balance sheets. The $1,600,000 face valu
of the convertible secured debentures has beercaddid to the liability and equity components
proportionately, based on their respective fairugal The fair value of the conversion feature of
convertible secured debentures was measured usinBlack-Scholes valuation model, assuming a risk-
free interest rate of 4.3%, no dividend and a ¥dlafactor of 50%, and such fair value was credito
contributed surplus. The fair value of the liailtomponent was determined by discounting the éutur
stream of interest and principal payments at aimagtd borrowing rate to the Company of 20%. As a
result, the Company allocated $907,263 to equity$692,737 to debt.
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The debenture holders were granted a secured shieréhe Tordillo exploration project. The Company
can call the debentures under certain conditiohs. Gompany can also prepay by giving the lendeceot
of such prepayment and the lender must acceptegayment or convert within a certain time period.

The debentures were accreted to $932,970 as aerSegt 30, 2008 (2007 - $828,808), with $105,16 dei
charged to interest expense in 2008 (2007 - $73,8\March 31, 2013, the carrying amount of theéesowill
have been accreted to $1,600,000, the face amaentgbn maturity.

12 Warrants

Balance - September 30, 2007

Exercised (note 10(i))
Issued (note 10(ii))
Issued (note 10(iii))
Exercised (note 10(vi))
Issued (note 10(vi))
Modified (b)

Modified (g)

Exercised (note 10(vii))
Issued (note 10(vii))
Issued (note 10(x))

Expired warrants (a)

Balance - September 30, 2008

Balance - September 30, 2006

Exercised (note 10(b)(xiv))
Issued (note 10(b)(xv))
Issued (note 10(b)(xv))
Issued (note 10(b)(xvi))
Issued (note 10(b)(xviii))
Issued (note 10(b)(xx))
Modified (b)

Modified (c)

Modified (d)

Modified (e)

Issued (f)

Balance - September 30, 2007

2008
Number of
warrants $
175,583,372 2,688
(9,936,090) (288)
51,804,437 783
4,928,485 78
(735,500) (12)
735,500 3
- 48
- 34
(700,000) (11)
700,000 3
19,137,911 262
(68,095,087) (1,872)
173,423,028 1,716
2007
Number of
warrants $
90,521,216 1,444
(2,190,039) (64)
34,156,000 201
2,390,000 39
20,000,000 115
2,800,000 22
26,431,515 184
- 14
- 412
- 89
- 218
1,474,680 14
175,583,372 2,688
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a)

b)

d)

Warrants expiring during 2008 were valued a8%2,000 (note 13).

On October 21, 2004, the Company sold throughivate placement 40,000,000 units at CA$0.07 per
unit, each unit consisting of one common share amal half of one common share purchase warrant to
purchase a further common share at CA$0.09 pee stiaany time within 24 months of the date of issue
These warrants were assigned a value of $276,8080&ober 16, 2006, the TSX agreed to extend the
expiration date on the 20,000,000 warrants fronoet 21, 2006 to October 22, 2007. The fair value o
these modified warrants of $47,885, in excess effélir value of the original warrants immediatetjop

to the modification date of $nil, was charged tpense. The fair values of the warrants were asgdigne
using the Black-Scholes valuation model, assuminiglafree interest rate of 4.07%, no dividend and
volatility factor of 80%.

On October 3, 2007, the TSX agreed to further ektha expiration date on the 20,000,000 warraois fr
October 22, 2007 to April 22, 2008 when they exgir€he fair value of these modified warrants of
$6,028, in excess of the fair value of the origiwakrants immediately prior to the modification elaf

$nil, was charged to expense. The fair values efwarrants were assigned using the Black-Scholes
valuation model, assuming a risk-free interest cht.21%, no dividend and a volatility factor @f8.

In connection with a private placement that etben December 10, 2003, the Company issued 40000,
common share purchase warrants exercisable at TB8%0per common share and expiring on
December 10, 2006. The warrants were assignedue wdl$784,315. In addition, the Company issued
3,585,588 broker warrants exercisable at CA$0.1&5gommon share and expiring on December 10,
2008. The broker warrants were assigned a val@@@f306. On November 21, 2006, the TSX approved a
reduction in the exercise price from CA$0.105 to$0A40 per common share for the common share
purchase warrants and the broker warrants. Thevédire of these modified warrants of $411,778, in
excess of the fair value of the original warramteniediately prior to the modification date of $nilas
charged to expense. The fair values of the warremt® assigned using the Black-Scholes valuation
model, assuming a risk-free interest rate of 4.0084lividend and a volatility factor of 50%.

On January 15, 2007, the TSX approved an exiarwi the exercise date of the warrants initiadisuied
on December 10, 2003 from January 19, 2007 to Ma&h2007. The fair value of these extended
warrants of $118,578, in excess of the fair valu#he original extended warrants immediately ptothe
extension date of $29,749, was charged to exp@gefair values of the warrants were assigned usiag
Black-Scholes valuation model, assuming a risk-freerest rate of 4.02%, no dividend and a volttili
factor of 50%.

On March 14, 2007, the TSX approved a furtheéeresion of the exercise date of the warrants ihitia
issued on December 10, 2003 from March 16, 200Noweember 1, 2007. The fair value of these extended
warrants of 239,203, in excess of the fair valuéheforiginal extended warrants immediately prathe
extension date of $20,972, was charged to exp@gefair values of the warrants were assigned usiag
Black-Scholes valuation model, assuming a risk-freerest rate of 4.09%, no dividend and a votatili
factor of 50%.
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f)

9)

On May 15, 2007, the Company issued 1,474,680ant exercisable at CA$0.06 per share, expifing i
24 months in connection with the termination of emgnent with a firm providing financial and
management consulting services.

On November 8, November 16 and November 30, 200%35,628 warrants were exercised at a price of
CA$0.055 per common share resulting in the issuaric£6,635,628 common shares and 16,635,628
common share purchase warrants to purchase arfuxth@mon share at CA$0.07 per share at any time
within 24 months of the date of issue. Net procexfdbie exercise of warrants were $699,830, of whic
$152,622 was assigned to the warrants using thekiaholes valuation model, assuming risk-free
interest rates of 3.68% to 3.73%, no dividend angblatility factor of 50%. The $226,910 fair value
originally assigned to these warrants and $40,05t fair value assigned to modified warrants was
transferred to share capital.

On October 25, 2007, the TSX agreed to extend tipiration date on the 16,635,628 warrants from
November 8, November 16 and November 30, 2007rtoals 31, 2008. The fair value of these modified
warrants of $34,333, in excess of the fair valueth® original warrants immediately prior to the
modification date of $nil, was charged to expef$e fair values of the warrants were assigned usiag
Black-Scholes valuation model, assuming a risk-fréerest rate of 3.97%, no dividend and a volatili
factor of 80%. These warrants were further extdridéviarch 31, 2008, at which time they expired.

The following table summarizes information abow tarrants outstanding as at September 30:

2008

Number
of warrants Weighted average Weighted average
outstanding remaining warrant life exercise price

(years) CA$

65,120,680 0.41 0.051
26,431,515 1.72 0.070
6,000,001 2.21 0.250
51,804,437 1.21 0.060
4,928,48! 1.72 0.070
19,137,911 1.94 0.070
173,423,028 1.12 0.070
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2007
Number
of warrants Weighted average Weighted average
outstanding remaining warrant life exercise price
(years) CA$

78,031,177 0.09 0.070
65,120,680 1.41 0.051
26,431,515 2.72 0.070

6,000,00! 3.21 0.250
175,583,372 0.69 0.103

13 Contributed surplus

$
Balance - September 30, 2006 and 2007 708
Warrants expired (note 12(a)) 1,87
Balance - September 30, 2008 58C

14 Reclamation and remediation

The Company’s mining and exploration activities subject to various Chilean laws and regulationgeguing

the protection of the environment. These laws @&gdlations are continually changing and are becgmiare
restrictive. Key assumptions on which the fair eahf the asset retirement obligations is basedidtecithe
estimated future cash flows, the timing of thosghclows and the credit-adjusted risk-free ratemich the
estimated cash flows have been discounted. Thé tm@iscounted amount of estimated cash flows of
$3,825,000 is expected to be incurred over a pegiddnding to ten years. These estimated cash faoers
discounted using a credit-adjusted risk-free rdt&.6%. The actual asset retirement obligation eledure
costs may differ significantly based on future dpesin operations, cost of reclamation and cloauatiities,
regulatory requirements and the outcome of legadeedings.

The Company’s reclamation and remediation liabéisyat September 30 is summarized as follows:

2008 2007
$ $
Balance - Beginning of year 884 635
Increase in liabilities (i) 972 249
Balance - End of year 1,85¢ 884
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i) The increase is due to changes in estimatedefgosts.
15 Segmented information

Substantially all of the Company’s assets and reggmre located in Chile. Historically, the Company
management has viewed the exploration and develuopaetivities of the Company in Chile as one segmen
The Company has operations as two reportable sdgi&menton and corporate.

The Company’s Pimenton segment includes a gold ariidemill operating in Chile. The corporate segment
includes all exploration and development activjt@smarily in Chile.

Of the total Company assets of $20,731,000 and®$2M00 as at September 30, 2008 and 2007, resglgcti
$21,639,000 and $14,851,000, respectively, retaRirhenton.

2008
Pimenton Corporate Total
$ $ $
Amortization 15 - 15
Temporary mine shutdown 50 - 50
Writte-off of exploration properties - 6,05¢ 6,056
General and administrative 556 994 1,550
Stock-based compensation - 398 398
Warrant revaluation - 90 90
Foreign exchange (28) (228) (256)
Interest expense 599 222 821
Other income (15) - (15)
Minority interest - (139) (139)
Loss and comprehensive loss for the year 1,177 7,39: 8,570
2007
Pimenton Corporate Total
$ $ $
Amortization 678 3 681
Temporary mine shutdown 119 - 119
General and administrative 275 1,47¢ 1,753
Stock-based compensation - 215 215
Warrant revaluation - 733 733
Foreign exchange 2 - 2
Interest expense 648 174 822
1,722 2,60: 4,325
Other income (420) (155) (575)
Loss and comprehensive loss for the year 1,30z 2,44¢ 3,750
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Of the corporate segment’s losses of $7,393,000$2448,000 in 2008 and 2007, respectively, apprateély
$6,144,456 of loss and $41,000 of loss, respegtivellate to Chilean activities, with the remaindefiecting

primarily corporate’s activities in Canada, the tgdiStates and Bermuda.
16 Commitments

a) Project commitments

Total
potential
Project Description commitment
$
Catedral and Rino A loan for development costs (note 17) up t®a,5

To the owner of another section of the property -
$275,000 - issuance of 1,824,815 common shares of
the Company valued at $125,000, and the balance of
$150,000 due on January 25, 2010, payable at 0@
option in the Company’s shares issued at a 15%
discount from the market value at that date, btit no
less than CA$0.20 per common share; the Company
can prepay this amount at any time.

La Bella La Bella inner was acquired in December 2007 k'
Company by way of an option agreement of the
property. Under the terms of the option agreement
US$10,000 was paid on signing; US$20,000 was paid
in six months;$70,000 at the end of the first year;
$200,000 at the end of the second year; $800,000 at
the end of the third year, $900,000 at the entief t
fourth year and $1,000,000 at the erfidhe fifth year.
The Company will pay a 2 ¥2% Net Smelter Royalty
from production thereafter. The Company also has a
minimum investment obligation of $50,000 in year
one; $250,000 in year two and $700,000 in yeasethre

On the outer circle the Compahgs an obligation
pay $100,000 in December 2008, $100,00(
December 2009, $500,000 in December 2C
$700,000 in December 2011, $1,000,000 in Dece
2012 and $2,600,000 in December 2013.

Company will pay a 2% % net smelter royaltytia
optionee of the inner circligom production thereafte

Cal Norte Capital contribution of $1,800,000 to earn 60% gqui
interest (note 8(b))
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$
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17

b) Lease commitments

The Company is committed to future minimum leasgnts under capital lease arrangements:

Year ending September 30,

$
2009 178,464
2010 178,464
2011 129,520
486,448
Interest (52,645)
433,803

From the total capital lease obligation held by @mmpany at September 30, 2008, $359,000 is dusdted
parties and has been allocated: $123,235 in the-&rm portion and $235,863 in the long-term antsutue
to related parties.

Related party transactions

A Company owned by chief executive officer, whoalso a director, billed the Company $78,286 in 2008
(2007 - $97,377) for the provision of office sparel services by the Company.

Receivable from an officer and director of $158,92007 - $329,000) is the net amount of non-irstere
bearing note receivable compensations and advandhe chief executive officer who is also a diceatf the
Company. The note is due on or before an extendedddte of June 30, 2009, collateralized by 6,%82,0
common shares of the Company owned by this offioerdirector.

The Chief Financial Officer of the Company reti@d February 6, 2008 at which time he was owed £80¢,
The Company entered into a retirement agreemeft thié former Chief Financial Officer under which he
received 2,000,000 Bonus Shares and was paid 8.To84he difference between the net sales pricthef
2,000,000 Bonus Shares and $100,000. In additiohalsebeen paid $5,000 per month beginning February,
2008 and will continue to be paid at the rate o088 per month until Pimenton is placed into conuiaér
production at which time he will receive $7,500 penth until the net balance of $67,260 as of Sepé&r 30.
The Chief Financial Officer billed $63,279 for acoting services rendered to the Company in 2008720
$108,694). Amounts due to related parties inclumgples to this officer of $264,000 for such sesic

A Company controlled by the Chief Financial Offideiled the Company $20,731 for accounting services

rendered in the period ended September 30, 200807 2 $nil). Amounts due to related parties include
payables to this officer of $9,051 for such sersiaeSeptember 30, 2008 (2007 - $nil).
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During 2007, the executive-vice-president-directd®jms and land management, who is also a direxdttire
Company, purchased from a non-related party ierést in the Pimenton notes and royalty. The faiue of
this note was $876,378 at September 30, 2008 (28¥55,076) and interest expense was $48,879 i8 200
(2007 — $48,746). Amounts due to related partielde $195,238 (2007 - $146,359) for interest al@ll$46

for royalties as at September 30, 2008 (2007 -882),

Amounts due to related parties include $193,926 #t0d5,362 as at September 30, 2008 and 2007,
respectively, for interest due to executive-vicegment-director of exploration who is also a dive®f the
Company who holds one of the Pimenton notes infdirevalue amounts of $870,787 and $750,217 as at
September 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively (notk)11fi addition, amounts due to related partiesuite
$101,645 and $91,802 at September 30, 2008 and, 288Fectively, for royalties due to this officarda
director who is the owner of a Net Smelter Royaltythe Pimenton gold mine.

The Executive Vice President and Director of Expiian and the Executive Vice President of Land and
Administration, both of whom are Directors of thermpany in April, 2008 entered into an agreement to
purchase for the Company’s wholly owned subsidi@gmpania Minera Pimenton, certain equipment on
terms not currently available to the Company. Thecpase price amounted to $440,038. The Company has
made a 25% payment against the purchase priceeadédhipment and the balance was funded by these two
Officers and Directors under the 37 months leaseesgent.

The Executive Vice President and Director of Exalian, who is also a Director of the Company ine]u#2008
agreed to guarantee the payment of a 37 month lgassthase agreement enter into by the Company on
February 23, 2008 with a local Chilean bank for plnechase of certain equipment whose purchase piEs
$150,672.

The Executive Vice President and Director of Exalian, who is also a Director of the Company ine]l2008
entered into an agreement to purchase for the Quoytgpavholly owned subsidiary, Compania Minera
Pimenton, certain equipment on terms not currentilable to the Company. The purchase price wa$9$8.

The Company has made a 20% payment against thégagrqrice of the equipment and the balance was
funded by this Officer and Director under the 37nthg lease agreement.

The Executive Vice President and Director of Lamdl &dministration, and a Director of the Company in
April, 2008 entered into 37 month lease purchageeagent to purchase for the Company’s wholly owned
subsidiary, Compania Minera Pimenton, certain egeimt, on terms not currently available to the Camypa
The purchase price amounted to $203,693.

Two officers and directors of the Company hold tio@-controlling interest in Catedral (note 8(a)hdér an
agreement dated November 27, 1996, the Compangddoeprovide or cause to provide these officed an
directors a loan of up to $1,250,000 each or $2(8WDin total. Such loans are to pay their propogte share
of development costs if a bankable feasibility gtutbmonstrates that the properties can be placed in
commercial production, and to fund their combin@&share of an option payment totaling $500,000¢ckvh
was paid during 1997.

The Executive-Vice-President-Director, Claims anandl Management and the Executive-Vice President-
Director of Exploration, both Directors of the Coamy, hold the convertible secured debentures iratheunt
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of $1,600,000. Interest expense was $93,949 and,$3Q for periods ended September 30, 2008 and, 2007
respectively. Amounts due related parties inclpdgables to these officers of $35,952 and $59,804ta
September 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively, foréateon this debt. On August 13, 2007, 2,672,645esh
were issued in payment of interest due on the atiblee subordinated debentures. The shares wereaait
$98,561, using the TSX closing price of the precgdiate and resulted in a gain of $14,298. On M&gy2008,
2,394,140 shares were issued in payment of intemeshe 10 % convertible subordinated debenturbs. T
shares were valued at $116,999, using the TSX pdbog days closing price.

Amounts due to related parties also include cashrazks of $8,909 at June 30, 2008 to the Company fhe
Executive Vice President — Director of Land and Awsiration, who is also a Director of the Company.

The Executive Vice President and Director of Land Administration, and a Director of the CompanyJaty
11, 2008 bought from Compafia Minera Pimenton temguipment. The sale price was $13,575. This
transaction generated $5,326 loss to the Company.

The Chief Executive Officer, the Executive Vice $ident, Director of Exploration and the Executivied/
President, Director of Administration who are alBBwectors of the Corporation hold a total of 3.2%tN
Smelter Royalty interest on Tordillo, a 3.2% Neteher Royalty interest on Bandurrias and a 2.50% Ne
Smelter Royalty interest on La Bellas. These Netlfm Royalty interests were approved by the Badrd
Directors and Compensation Committee of the Compan001. These individuals have not received
compensation and benefits comparable to miningsimgistandards since 2001.

18 Supplemental cash flow information

2008 2007
$ $
Changes in non-cash working capital relating toafens
Receivables (132) 63
Materials and supplies (109) 3)
Recoverable taxes (489) -
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities, excludimgrest in
accrued liabilities 121 42
Taxes payable (IVA) 24 68
Amounts due to related parties 17 72
(602) 242
Significant non-cash financing and investing atitbgi
Shares and warrants issued (92) 673
No income taxes were paid during 2008 and 2007
Total interest paid 256 78

36



South American Gold and Copper Company Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2008 and 2007

(all tabular amounts are expressed in thousantds®fdollars, except number of shares and per share

19 Financial Risks Factors

The Company’s risks exposures and the impact o€tmpany’s financial instruments are summarized
below:

Credit Risk

The Company has no significant concentration adlicrésk arising from operations. Management bedev
that the credit risk concentration with respeateieivables is remote.

Liquidity risk

The Company’'s approach to managing liquidity riska ensure it will have sufficient liquidity to iete
liabilities when due. As at September 30, 2008, Gloenpany’s deficit was $63.8 million and a working
capital deficiency of approximately $1.2 millionnda continues to incur significant cash outflows. At
September 30, 2008, cash was $153,000 and $22@d0rent restricted cash.

To preserve its cash position the Company plarsotaentrate its efforts on Pimenton and substéntial
defer expenditures on other projects until Pimertomes on line. The Company believes with the non-
brokered private placement financing to cover itsking capital shortfall it will have adequate cashput

the Pimenton mine back into commercial productio®@tctober 2008 at which time Pimenton will provide
sufficient cash flow to support the Company’s omgobperations.

Factors risks

The Company is a minerals producing, exploratiod davelopment company with properties currently
focused in Chile. Its mining activities involve narous inherent risks. The Company is subjecat@dus
financial, operational and political risks that ttleauld significantly affect its profitability andperating
cash flow. The Company minimizes these risks bgftdhimanagement and planning. These risks include
changes in local laws affecting the mining indusérydecline in the price of gold or copper, undetias
inherent in estimating mineral reserves and mingrsburces and fluctuations in the Chilean pesinaga
the US dollar. The Company does not use finamtstuments to mitigate the risks of changes inpttiee

of gold or currency fluctuations.

The Company operates in an international envirommand as such, is subject to currency risk. A
significant portion of the Company’s expendituresienominated in Chilean pesos and Canadian dollars
A strengthening of these currencies could adveisidet the Company’s costs denominated in US dolla
Recently the US dollar has weakened significargbimst both of these currencies.

The Company’s business is very dependent on tle pfi gold which is subject to fluctuation by fasto
the Company cannot control. A drop in the pricegolid could adversely affect the Company’s finahcia
condition, results of operations and cash flowswér gold prices may result in: a) asset impairnaemt a
write-down of the asset carrying value, b) produtitutbacks and c) cessation of operations.
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The Company’'s Pimenton mine is highly dependengenerating its own electrical needs at the mine,
plant and camp sites. Fuel costs have risen sulmsbamnd are expected to go higher. Higher fuedts
will have an adverse impact on profitably of theneni

Mine labour costs in Chile are increasing whichldaadversely impact operating profits at the Piroant
mine.

The Company operates primarily in Chile and is egabto the laws governing the mining industry in
Chile. The Chilean government is currently supperbf the mining industry but changes in governmen
regulations including taxation, repatriation of fiisy restrictions on production, export controls,
environmental compliance, expropriation of propeatyd shifts in political stability of the countryé
labour unrest could adversely affect the Compaeyfsoration efforts and production plans.

Gold reserves are reduced by production and therefuust be replaced by expanding existing gold
deposits or finding new ones. There can be noasse that the Company’s development and exploratio
programs will result in new gold reserves. Minageserves and resources are estimates which may diff
significantly from actual mining results.

Due to financial constraints the Company manageeperations with a limited number of key personnel
The need to replace any of these individuals caddersely affect the Company's operations until a
qualified replacement is found.

The Company does not currently carry insurancebfminess interruptions nor does it carry insuramte
its camp, plant, assay laboratory, fuel storaggaoage facilities at Pimenton due to financial txaists.

The Company’'s mine is located in an area that cqergénce severe winter weather conditions which
could adversely affect mining operations. Such @@rs occurred during 2005, resulting in the slowtd

of the mine. In addition, the Company is subjecetivironmental laws and regulations that are eoist
changing and may require expenditures that ardfisigntly different from our current estimates.

Readers should read the risk factors which areritbest in more detail in the Company’'s Annual
Information Form for the year ended September 8®82 Such factors could materially affect future
operating results of the Company and cause acesallts to differ materially from those described in
forward —looking statements relating to the Company

The Company’s continuance as a going concern isrdgmt upon obtaining adequate funding, including
insurance remediation to recommence operatiortea®imenton gold mine, reaching profitable operatio
at the mine, pursuing joint venture partners, ealether disposition of all or part of its assetsadditional
external funding. There is no assurance thattigssnanagement is taking will be successful anthe
event that such resources are not available, thep@ny's assets may not be realized or its liabditi
discharged at their carrying amounts, and thegerdiices could be material.

Sensitivity analysis

As of September 30, 2008, both the carrying andvidiue amounts of the Company's financial instmtsie
are approximately equivalent.
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20

21

22

The Company believes the following movements agasonably possible" over a twelve-month period:
(i) There would be no impact on the cash held atimpany does not earn any interest on this cash.

(ii) The Company does not hold significant balanicefereign currencies to give rise to exposuréteign
exchange risk.

Capital Management

The Company manages its capital structure and nwdjastments to it, based on the funds availabthdo
Company, in order to support the acquisition, esgilon and development of mineral properties.

The acquisition, exploration, financing and devetemt of natural resources require the expenditfire o
significant funds before production commences. dilistlly, the Company has financed these activities
through the issuance of common shares, the exeofisptions and common share purchase warrants,
promissory notes and debentures, bank debt anddedderms from creditors.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividemdsdoes not foresee the declaration or payment of
dividends in the near future. Any decision to payid&nds on its shares will be made by the board of
directors on the basis of the Company’s earningantial requirements and other conditions existihg
such future time.

Comparative amounts

Certain of the prior year’'s amounts have been seifiad to conform to the current year’s consokdiat
financial statement presentation.

Subsequent Events

On September 26, 2008 the Company received conditapproval from the Toronto Stock Exchange for
the issuance of Convertible Debenture secured bipeeent leases totalling Cdn $706,808, which ate st
subject to the Toronto Stock Exchange final apdroMae Convertible Debentures are non interestibgar
and are convertible at Cdn $0.05 per share orgdoia total of 14,136,160 shares. Under the terintise
Convertible Debentures, the net amount (total Ipayenents less lease payments made less the balance
interest due on the remaining lease payments) beatlonvertible into common shares of the Company.
The total lease payments are Cdn $17,600 per mastthe lease payments are made by Compafia Minera
Pimenton, the amount of the Convertible Debentwecarrespondingly reduced. Compafia Minera
Pimenton may on 30 days notice to the lessors prémanet amount due to be paid to the lessordiss
remaining interest due under the leases or therl@say elect to take the balance of the lease paly(net

of interest on the remaining lease payments) ineshaf the Company within the 30 day notice period.

The Convertible Debentures will be issued to secer&ain equipment leases used to purchase equipmen
for the Pimenton gold mine on terms not currentigilable to Pimenton.
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On December 12, 2008 the Company received conditiapproval from the Toronto Stock Exchange for
the private placement of $385,000 or Cdn$485,216dxt$ 0.025 per share or 19,408,600 common stock
of the Company plus one half common stock purchaseant, each whole warrant to be exercisable into
one share of common stock of the Company at Cdd$0p@r share for a period of 24 months from the
date of issuance.

In addition the placement agent is to receive 1,@8®common stock purchase warrants exercisab@4for
months from the date of issuance at Cdn$0.025hzees

A Director who is also an officer of the Companytjgpated in the placement for $85,000 at Cdn$b.02
per shares or 4,285,020 common stock of the Commdunry purchase warrants to purchase up to 2,1@5,51
common shares of the Company at Cdn$ 0.045 pee $baa period of 24 months from date of issue on
which no placement agent fees will be paid or waségssued.
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